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Forward-looking statement
In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable 
investors to comprehend our prospects and take informed investment decisions. 
This report and other statements – written and oral - that we periodically make, 
contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated results based on 
the management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried, wherever possible 
to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, 
‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar substance 
in connection with any discussion of future performance. We cannot guarantee 
that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we 
have been prudent in our assumptions. The achievement of results is subject to 
risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown 
risks or uncertainties materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove 
inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated 
or projected. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking 
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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PERFORMANCE 
HIGHLIGHTS, FY 2021-22
504.52
(H/Crore), Revenue

30
(%) increase

47.02
(H/Crore), EBIDTA

39
(%) increase

17.76
(%), ROCE

578
bps growth

29.56
(%), PAT

50.20
(%) increase



POISED & PREPARED
AT MANAKSIA STEELS LIMITED, WE ARE POISED AND PREPARED 
TO GROW OUR BUSINESS.

THE COMPANY INTENDS TO GROW ITS MANUFACTURING 
CAPACITY, GRADUATE TO A VALUE-ADDED PRODUCT MIX AND 
ADDRESS A WIDE DOWNSTREAM CUSTOMER AUDIENCE BASE.

A COMPLEMENT OF THESE INITIATIVES IS EXPECTED TO 
ENHANCE REVENUES, MARGINS AND SURPLUS, A PLATFORM 
FOR MULTI-YEAR SUSTAINABILITY.



CORPORATE SNAPSHOT

MANAKSIA STEELS LIMITED.

A LIGHT ENGINEERING COMPANY IN THE 
METAL PRODUCTS AND METAL FORMATION 
SPACE.

COMMITTED TO CUSTOMISE PRODUCTS FOR 
DOWNSTREAM USERS IN THE HOUSING, 
CONSUMER APPLIANCE, INDUSTRIAL AND 
WAREHOUSING SECTORS.

STRUCTURED TO SERVICE, DELIVER AND 
DELIGHT CUSTOMERS THROUGH A CULTURE 
OF FLEXIBILITY AND RESPONSIVENESS.

PREPARED TO ENHANCE VALUE FOR ALL ITS 
STAKEHOLDERS IN A SUSTAINABLE WAY.

Background
Manaksia Steels is 
headquartered at Kolkata. The 
Company was promoted by 
Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal, a 
qualified chemical engineer, 
who is complemented by subject 
experts. The Company is a 
multi-location, multi-product 
light engineering company 
engaged in the field of metal 
products and metal formation. 
It manufactures value-added 
flat steel products and is poised 
to address a growing products 
demand from the housing and 
infrastructure sectors.

About Manaksia
Manaksia, a multinational 
business house, has 
manufacturing operations in 
India, Nigeria and Ghana 
with a focus on flat/long metal 
products of steel, aluminum and 
kraft paper. The Company is a 
product supplier across many 
parts of India while exporting to 
Japan and Africa.

Presence
The Company is headquartered 
in Kolkata (India) and its state-
of-the-art manufacturing units 
are located in Haldia and 
Bankura, West Bengal, India. 
The Company has also ventured 
into the long steels segment in 

Nigeria through its step-down 
subsidiary (Federated Steel Mills 
Limited), which recycles steel 
scrap and manufacture steel 
bars used in construction with 
multi-year growth possibilities.

Sales footprint
Manaksia Steels is a global 
supplier of galvanised steel coils 
and sheets; its international 
sales footprint extends across 
Bhutan, Ethiopia, Cote d’Ivore, 
Liberia, Sierra Leone, Gambia, 
Ghana, Nigeria, Sri Lanka and 
UAE. Galvanised coils and 
sheets represent the largest 
revenue generating product, 
contributing 49.62% of the 
Company’s revenues in FY 
2021-22.
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Products
Cold rolled steel sheets / coils: 
Cold rolled steel sheets and coils 
are manufactured through a series 
of processes such as pickling and 
oiling of such coils followed by cold 
rolling hot rolled coil and annealing. 
The key elements of the product 
include good formability and uniform 
flatness. The sheets and coils are 
used in downstream applications 
such as automobiles, home electronic 
appliances, hot dipped galvanised 
steel and pre painted steel products.

Hot dipped galvanised steel: 
Manaksia Steels installed hot 
dipped galvanising lines at Haldia 
and Bankura in West Bengal. 
The Company manufactures hot 
dipped galvanised steel for building 
materials, white goods and electronic 
appliance industries.

Pre painted profile sheets: The pre-
painted continuous colour coated 
line processes different substrates like 
galvanised steel, aluminum zinc alloy, 
coated steel and aluminum. The unit 
is also equipped to produce structural 
profiles (Trapezodial and Sinusoidal).

Installed capacity
Haldia plant

Cold rolled sheets and coils: 
84,000 MT

Hot dipped galvanised steels and 
coils: 36,000 MT

Pre painted galvanised sheet and 
coils: 24,000 MT

Bankura plant

Hot dipped galvanised sheets and 
coils: 30,000 MT

Quality
The manufacturing unit of 
Manaksia Steels is an ISO 
9001-2015-accredited facility 
that maintains strict quality norms. 
The continuous coil coating line 
includes an efficient pre-treatment 
unit with a quality control laboratory 
and other measuring equipment to 
deliver quality material of the same 
standard each time. The cold rolled 
products are all manufactured 
under international standards like 
JIS 3141, BS 1449, DIN 1623 
and IS 513. Hot dipped galvanised 
steel is manufactured according to 
relevant national or international 
standards

Employees
The Company has earned respect 
for its knowledge and experience. 
The Company possesses a pool 
of experienced and talented 
professionals. The employee 
strength of the Company stood at 
176 in FY2021-22; almost 70% of 
the employees had been associated 
with the Company for more than 
five years as on 31st March 2022.

Brand
Manaksia Steels galvanised 
corrugated sheets are branded as 
‘5 Star Super Shakti’ and colour 
coating sheets and coils enjoy a 
respected recall under the brand 
name of ‘5 Star Super Colour’.

Certifications
The manufacturing plant of the 
Company is an ISO 9001-2015 
certified unit. All the products of 
the Company conform to ISO 
standards. The Company has 
also been certified to produce 
conforming to the guidelines laid 
down by Bureau of Indian Standard 
(BIS).

Listing
The shares of the Company are 
listed on National Stock Exchange 
of India Ltd. and BSE Ltd. The 
market capitalisation of the 
Company stood at H284 Crore as 
on 31st March, 2022.

Our Board of Directors and 
Chief Executive Officer
	� Mr. Varun Agrawal, 
Managing Director

	� Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal, 
Director

	� Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal, Director

	� Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri, 
Independent Director

	� Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari, 
Independent Director

	� Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty, 
Independent Director

	� Mrs. Nidhi Baheti, 
Independent Woman Director

	� Mr. Vineet Agrawal, 
Chief Executive Officer

The Company has no permanent 
Chairperson. Dr. Kali Kumar 
Chaudhuri has been authorised by 
the Board as the Chairperson of 
the ensuing 21st Annual General 
Meeting.
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HOW WE HAVE PERFORMED 
IN THE LAST FEW YEARS
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Meaning
Revenue is the income 
generated by a business from 
its main operations before 
the deduction of costs and 
expenses.

Importance
It highlights the service 
acceptance and market reach 
of the Company

Performance
The Company reported 
H504.52 Crore in revenues 
during FY 2021-22, 30% higher 
than the previous year.

Meaning
EBITDA is an acronym that 
refers to the earnings of a 
company before the deduction 
of interest, tax, depreciation and 
amortisation.

Importance
Investors use EBITDA as an 
indicator to measure the 
profitability and efficiency of a 
company while comparing with 
similar companies.

Performance
The Company reported H47.02 
Crore in EBITDA in FY 2021-
22, 39.32%, higher than the 
previous year

Meaning
Profit after tax refers to the 
amount that remains after a 
company has paid all operating 
and non-operating expenses, 
other liabilities and taxes. 
This surplus is available to be 
distributed to shareholders as 
dividend or retained in reserves.

Importance
Profit after tax shows the actual 
amount the Company has 
generated during a financial 
period, a measure of its 
competitiveness

Performance
The Company has reported 
H29.56 Crore of PAT in 
FY 2021-22, 50.20% higher 
than the previous year
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Debt-equity ratio Interest coverage ratio RoCE Earnings per share
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Meaning
The debt-to-equity ratio is a 
leverage ratio that calculates 
the weight of total debt and 
financial liabilities against total 
shareholders’ equity

Importance
This ratio highlights whether the 
Company’s capital structure 
is tilted towards either debt or 
equity financing.

Performance
The Company has reported a 
better debt-to-equity ratio of 
0.03 for FY 2021-22, 26 bps 
lower than the previous year 
(and hence better)

Meaning
The interest coverage ratio 
is a financial ratio that is 
used to determine how well a 
company can pay interest on its 
outstanding debts.

Importance
The interest coverage ratio is 
commonly used by lenders, 
creditors and investors to 
determine the risk involved in 
lending capital to a company.

Performance
The Company reported a 51.24 
interest coverage ratio for FY 
2021-22, more than double the 
previous year.

Meaning
Return on capital employed 
(ROCE), a profitability ratio, 
measures how efficiently a 
company is using its capital to 
generate profits.

Importance
The return on the capital 
employed matrix is considered 
one of the best profitability 
ratios and is commonly used by 
investors to determine whether 
it is suitable or not to invest in a 
particular company.

Performance
The Company reported 17.76% 
return on capital employed for 
FY 2021-22, 578 bps higher 
than the previous year

Meaning
Earnings per share is a financial 
ratio, which divides net 
earnings available to common 
shareholders by the average 
outstanding shares over a 
certain period.

Importance
The earning per share indicates 
a company’s ability to generate 
net profits for common 
shareholders.

Performance
The Company has reported 
H4.51 earning per share for FY 
2021-22, 151 bps higher than 
the previous year
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THE BIG PICTURE

MANAKSIA STEELS IS 
PREPARED FOR A 
USD 5 TRILLION 
INDIAN ECONOMY

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-226



THE COMPANY HAS INVESTED IN ITS BUSINESS TO RIDE THE 
NATIONAL ECONOMIC GROWTH STORY

Overview
Manaksia Steels has invested in its business to ride the Indian economic growth. The stronger 
the growth of the economy, the better the Company’s performance. From a macro perspective, 
the Company is attractively placed. In 2021, India, with a population of around 1.40 Billion, 
possessed an economy estimated at USD 2.92 Trillion and was the sixth largest in the world. India 
is likely to grow faster and emerge as the world’s third largest economy by the end of this decade.
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National turnaround
India’s tax collections reported a record 
H27.07 Lakh Crore in FY 2021-22 
compared with the Budget estimate of 
H22.17 Lakh Crore; tax-to-GDP ratio 
jumped from 10.3% in FY21 to 11.7% 
in FY 2021-22, the highest since 1999. 
The value of goods exported from India 
witnessed 40% growth during FY 2021-
22 financial year, touching a record 
USD 417.8 Billion and surpassing the 
target set by the government by 5%. This 
could strengthen all the businesses of the 
Company.

Infrastructure spending
In the 2022 Union Budget, India 
announced a 35% increase in 
infrastructure outlay. The PLI schemes 
are expected to strengthen MSMEs, 
increasing their contribution to the 
Indian economy from 30% to 40%. The 
National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP) was 
launched with a projected infrastructure 
investment of around H111 Lakh Crore 
(USD 1.5 Trillion) during 2020-2025 
to provide world-class infrastructure. 
(Source: Money Control, pib.gov.in, 
Livemint). This could grow the metal 
sheets business for roofing applications.

Population and demographics
The population of India is 1.40 Billion 
in 2022; by 2023, India could overtake 
China to become the most populous 
country. More than 50% of India’s 
current population is below the age 
of 25; over 65% population is below 
35. India’s population is urbanising, 
evolving its preferences and aspirations. 
The country could have the world’s 
third-largest number of high-income 
households by 2030. This could catalyse 
the Company’s business.
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Middle-class
Around 55% of India’s population 
could belong to the consuming class 
by 2030, a significant improvement 
from 24% today. (Source: Economic 
Times). By 2030, India will move from 
being an economy led by the bottom of 
the pyramid, to one led by the middle-
class. The number of middle-income 
households is expected to rise from 
50% of all households today to 80% by 
2030, accounting for 75% of consumer 
spending by that year. This could catalyse 
the Company’s business.

Make in India
Atmanirbhar Bharat is expected to 
enhance self-reliance and provide for the 
country’s growing needs from within. This 
is expected to strengthen India’s position 
as a competitive global products and 
services provider. This could catalyse the 
erection of infrastructure, strengthening 
the offtake of metal sheets.

Spending
As 140 Million households move into 
the middle class and another 20 Million 
move into the high-income bracket, 
they will spend 2-2.5x more on essential 
categories (food, beverages, apparel, 
personal care, gadgets, transport and 
housing) and 3-4x more on services 
(healthcare, education, entertainment 
and household care). Upper-middle-
income and high-income entrants 
could drive a 15-20% increase in 
the ownership of durables (washing 
machines, refrigerators, TVs and 
personal vehicles). This could catalyse 
the offtake of metal sheets.

Rural housing
There is a greater emphasis on 
affordable housing in India, backed 
by interest subvention provided by the 
government to borrowers. The real estate 
sector is expected to reach USD 1 Trillion 
in market size by 2030, up from USD 
200 Billion in 2021 and contribute 13% 
to the country’s GDP by 2025. This is 
expected to strengthen prospects of the 
metal sheets segment.

‘Plan B’
Plan B is an increasingly used reference 
to describe the need of the world to 
reduce its excessive dependence on 
China for resources and products and 
broad base the global supply chain. 
The country that comes collectively 
closest in terms of scale, costs, legal 
framework, knowledge base and 
manufacturing tradition is India. Even a 
nominal movement away of the world’s 
procurement from China can drive 
India’s share of exports and global 
trade. This could strengthen the country’s 
industry, catalysing the business where 
the Company is present.

Increase in monthly income of 
agricultural households
Agricultural households’ average monthly 
income increased by 59% to H10,218 
in the six years to 2018-19, as per 
the National Statistical Office’s (NSO) 
Situation Assessment of Agricultural 
Households and Land and Livestock 
Holdings of Households in Rural India 
(SAS) 2019 survey. In FY 2013-14, the 
Budget allocation for the department of 
agriculture was only H21,933.50 Crore. 
This has increased more than 5.5 times 
to H1,23,017.57 Crore in FY 2021-22. 
The extension of this trend is expected to 
strengthen rural incomes and prospects 
of the metal sheets segment for rural 
roofing applications.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

MANAKSIA STEELS 
IS PERCEIVING 
A LONG-TERM PROSPECT 
IN ITS BUSINESS
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Our Company has been in 
operations since 2014.
The rationale of our business continues to be 
relevant as 65% Indians live in rural India. Much 
of the rural population uses straw, tiles and 
asbestos to cover the roofs of their houses, built 
on bamboo structures. These roofs are temporary 
and require periodic upgradation or repair, 
entailing recurring expenses.

Our management felt that India would soon 
move towards healthier and safer metal roofing 
sheets for reasons of health, durability and 
cost effectiveness. Over time, our foresight was 
validated and demand of metal sheets increased.

To serve the rural housing sector, Manaksia Steels 
Limited commenced production of galvanised and 
corrugated steel sheets that provided a superior 
price-value proposition over existing alternatives.

Over the last eight years, MSL commissioned 
factories in Haldia and Bankura (West Bengal) 
to manufacture roofing sheets. By doing so, the 
Company created direct employment for around 
170 people and for hundreds through indirect 
employment.

As a measure of responsibility, the Company 
manufactures steel products using state-of-the-
art technologies that enhance material efficiency. 
In addition, the Company initiated the use of 
relatively clean LPG and solar power, over high 
sulphur liquid fuel.

The majority of the products of the Company 
are marketed where they are most needed. 
Such products are marketed largely in East and 

North-East India, where they address relatively 
under-addressed needs. To grow the business 
in a sustainable way, our Company is widening 
its marketing network and is poised to increase 
production capacity in a phased manner.

The effect of planning and preparedness of the 
Company has been reflected in its performance. 
The Company recovered from the COVID-19 
setback to report financial growth and there is 
an optimism that this improvement is likely to be 
sustained.

The Company is committed to enhance 
sustainability through responsible governance. It 
is rightly poised to take advantages coming out 
of anticipated growth and the Government vision 
of Make in India. As a part of its commitment 
to governance, the Company continued to 
consistently contribute towards social responsibility 
initiatives around defined annual targets.

Such achievements across a challenging phase 
in the existence of the Company during the last 
couple of years were made with the wholehearted 
support of our shareholders. The management will 
endeavour to live up to the confidence reposed in 
it by enhancing value for all stakeholders.

Jai Hind!

Kali Kumar Chaudhuri,
Chairperson of the ensuing 
21st Annual General Meeting

30%
Growth in the revenues 
of the Company in FY 22
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THE MANAGING DIRECTOR’S OVERVIEW

Overview
I am pleased to present a year of profitable 
growth at our Company, which validates the 
sustainable robustness of our business model.

Revenues increased 30%, EBITDA strengthened 
39.32% and profit after tax increased 50.20% 
during the year under review. These outcomes 
indicate that our business model is attractively 

structured to enhance stakeholder value with 
every successive increase in revenues. The 
aggregate record manufacturing revenue 
was 52.86% higher than the previous; this 
improvement was despite a sharp increase in the 
cost of raw materials and logistics, the Russia-
Ukraine war and foreign exchange volatility.

THE COMPANY REPORTED 
A YEAR OF PROFITABLE 
GROWTH IN FY 22

Varun Agrawal
Managing Director
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Thinking efficiently
The principal driver of our profitable growth 
was the efficiency of the Company. Over the 
years, such efficiency has been derived from 
the capacity to think differently.

When most advisors cautioned us about the 
pandemic-induced slowdown, what we heard 
was ‘opportunity’ instead.

When industry experts indicated that only 
the largest could survive in this volume-led 
business, we focused on becoming the most 
efficient instead.

When experts felt that manufacturing large 
volume galvanised sheets would be the safest 

and simplest, we selected to venture into the 
manufacture of colour coated sheets instead.

When most felt that sticking to conventional 
products was the best way to maximise 
volumes, we broad based to the manufacture 
of thinner gauge sheets instead.

The year under review validated our contrarian 
approach: the Company’s revenue growth was 
3.37x the national GDP growth; the Company 
protected its financial hygiene by remaining 
net debt free and with a receivables cycle of 
only 30 days.

Long-term relevance
When we went into business, we selected 
to manufacture cold rolled steel sheets, a 
business linked to the national economic 
direction.

The sector on which we placed our bets was 
the country’s building sector (housing and 
commercial). This direction was influenced by 
the extensive under-ownership of homes across 
the country. We were convinced that as Indians 
earned more, there would be traction towards 
increased home building or ownership.

Manaksia Steels was at the right place 
at the right time. Over the decades, the 
Company addressed the organic growth 
of the sector. During the last few years, the 
Indian government focused on growing the 

affordable housing and toilet construction 
segments, the largest bulge of India’s real 
estate sector. The Company is now catering 
to this emerging segment with a range of 
galvanised and colour coated grades, carving 
out a larger share of the trade partner’s wallet 
and strengthening its brand as a committed 
roofing sheets specialist. The Company is 
also capitalising on the fact that metal sheets 
enjoy superior scrap value and are considered 
environmentally cleaner over the asbestos 
cement roofing alternative, accounting for 
a respectable market share. The Company 
will continue to invest in new technologies, 
building scale and recall, while creating a 
platform for profitable and sustainable growth.

Competitive advantages
At Manaksia Steels, we have reinforced our 
competitive advantage through various means.

Our principal strength is the multi-decade 
knowledge and experience of our sector, 
including an exposure to various market 
cycles, demand patterns, evolving consumer 
needs and government policies.

Our ‘5 Star’ brand is respected for ‘trust’, 
‘long lasting’ and ‘high quality’, empowering 
it to sell faster than competitors in the markets 
of our presence.

Our service standard has helped us graduate 
from mere product delivery to the manufacture 
of sheets customised to specific consumer 
requirements (especially thinner gauges 
without compromising quality).

Our product portfolio extends from 0.11mm 
to 0.60 mm thickness, making it possible 
to service a range of roofing applications 
(residential and commercial).

Our manufacturing competitiveness is reflected 
in a high conversion efficiency across the 

50.20%
Growth in PAT during FY 
2021-22

WHEN MOST ADVISORS 
CAUTIONED US ABOUT 
THE PANDEMIC-INDUCED 
SLOWDOWN, WHAT 
WE HEARD WAS 
‘OPPORTUNITY’ INSTEAD.
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manufacturing process, resulting in a 
higher material and worker productivity

Our manufacturing flexibility makes it 
possible to adapt to dynamic demand 
patterns for galvanised or colour coated 
sheets, strengthening profitability.

Our focus on value-added products 
has helped increase the proportion of 
colour coated sheets, a product segment 
enjoying 10% higher realisation over the 
galvanised segment and accounting for 
38.68% of our revenues in FY 22.

Attractive roofing play
Manaksia Steels enjoys attractive 
prospects as a construction steel sheets 
producer.

There is a growing priority for primary 
steel producers to increase their 
capacities. By the virtue of focusing on 
volumes, these large steel companies 
provide the basic raw material (steel 
sheets) for inward processing into 
customised downstream requirements. 
These sheets need to be processed, cut 
to size and cold-reduced as per diverse 
applications. These sheets (hot rolled) 
are inevitably processed by focused 
steel processing companies like your 
Company, servicing the needs of a large 
number of smaller users across the 
country. The capacity mismatch between 
large primary steel producers at one end 
and steel processors like Manaksia Steels 
at the other, indicates a growing room 
for the latter’s business.

There is a growing room for customised 
steel sheet processing on account of 
climate change. In the last few years, 
the incidence of cyclones has increased; 
storms have become more intense, 
marked not only by more rain within a 
compressed period but also stronger 
winds. This has warranted the creation 
of strong and customised metal roofing 
sheets.

In a post-Balance Sheet development, 
the Indian government imposed an 
export duty on steel products with the 
objective to enhance local availability 
and moderate prices. This government’s 
intervention will make hot rolled coils 
more affordable for our Company 
resulting in a lower cost of end products 
(without affecting our profit contribution) 
that should widen the market, benefiting 
companies like ours through larger 
volumes.

Attractively placed
At Manaksia Steels, we possess a 
modernised plant that delivers a high 
operating efficiency.

The plant has been adequately 
depreciated in our Balance Sheet, 
making it possible to generate an 
attractive profitability with an upturn in 
revenues.

The Company enjoys stable primary 
customers (trade partners) who provide 

revenue visibility for the moment and 
scalability across the foreseeable future.

The Company sells and manufactures 
as opposed to manufacture and sell, 
minimising inventories and enhancing 
customisation around specific needs.

The expansion programmes of the 
Company are generally driven by trade 
partners who provide commitments on 
prospective purchases, derisking the 

THE COMPANY INTENDS TO ENHANCE INVESTMENTS IN 
RENEWABLE SOLAR ENERGY CAPACITY FROM 1 MW TO 2 
MW WITH THE OBJECTIVE TO MODERATE COSTS.
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Company from capacity under-utilisation.

The Haldia manufacturing facility of the 
Company was utilised only to the extent 
of 15% by space, providing extensive 
headroom for sustainable growth.

Outlook
Going ahead, the Company will 
rebalance across its processing, 
galvanising and colour coating 
capacities with the objective to maximise 
captive consumption and widen the 
value chain.

The Company intends to increase the 
proportion of revenues derived from the 
value-added segment of colour coated 
sheets from 40% to 60%.

The Company intends to enhance 
investments in renewable solar energy 
capacity from 1 MW to 2 MW with the 
objective to moderate costs.

Through these initiatives, the Company 
intends to increase revenues from 
H504.52 Crore in FY 22 to an estimated 
H1000 Crore by FY 25, enhancing value 
in the hands of those associated with our 
Company.

Varun Agrawal
Managing Director
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THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REVIEW

AN INSIGHT INTO THE 
FINANCIAL HEART OF 
OUR BUSINESS

Overview
The overarching message that we seek to 
communicate is that the Company built on its 
business during the year under review even as it 
encountered challenges related to raw material 
cost volatility, global supply chain bottlenecks, 
staggered vaccination process, anticipated 
increase in working capital outlay, retaining 
the price-value proposition of end products, 
addressing the market demand of specific roofing 

varieties, increasing preference for colour coated 
products and growing the business through net 
worth. The Company successfully addressed 
these challenges, making it yet another growth 
year, the best in the Company’s existence. The 
improvement in performance was a validation 
of the Company’s maturing, critical mass and 
enhanced competitiveness of the Company.

Rajesh Singhania
Chief Financial Officer
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Profitable growth
During the last few years, the Company scaled 
its business around three products - cold rolled 
steel sheets, galvanised sheets and colour 
coated roofing sheets / coils, which enhanced 
a variety in offerings. The strength of this 
product mix was validated during the year 
under review: the Company reported 30% 

revenue growth (compared with the Indian 
GDP growth of a projected 8.7%) to generate 
peak revenues. The Company reported a 50% 
increase in PAT despite losing a part of the first 
quarter to the pandemic. This was the second 
successive year of the Company reporting 
profitable growth.

Profitable growth FY20 FY21 FY22 

Revenue growth % -29.18 -20.47 30.00

EBITDA growth % -30.34 96.22 39.32

Capital efficiency
The Company reported creditable profitability 
during the year under review. EBITDA margin 
strengthened 62 bps to 9.32%, which was 
a reflection of an all-round improvement in 
performance; Return on Capital Employed 
strengthened 578 bps to 17.76% due 
to enhanced production (volume) and 
realisations (value); RoE strengthened from 
9.56% to 12.42%. The Company protected 
the integrity of its Balance Sheet from 
impairment and reported record revenues and 
profits.

The overall improvement in the health of the 
business was the result of long-term priorities: 
enhance economies of scale and its ‘5 star’ 
brand in the volume-driven metal roofing 
sheets business. The clarity of this approach 

created a foundation for the Company to build 
on – the higher the offtake, the better was 
the profitability. During the year under review, 
the metal roofing sheets business contributed 
88.30% of the Company’s revenues and 
approximately 82% of its EBITDA, indicating 
that the Company generated most of its profits 
from core competence.

Across the foreseeable future, we expect to 
generate a return superior to what our risk 
partners (shareholders) would be able to 
generate if they invested in alternative asset 
classes. We will seek to maximise capital 
efficiency through an accruals-driven business 
model, investment in expansion projects with 
a short payback, value-addition and superior 
working capital management.

Year FY20 FY21 FY22 

Return on Capital Employed % 7.36 11.98 17.76

Margin
Our objective is to generate a superior 
margin. This commitment was reinforced 
during the last financial year when EBITDA 
margin strengthened following an increase in 

production, realisations, value-addition and 
raw material inventory profits, a validation of 
our volume- and value-driven approach.

Year FY20 FY21 FY22 

EBITDA margin % 3.53 8.70 9.32

17.76%
ROCE following and 
increase of 578 bps in 
FY 22

THE COMPANY 
REPORTED A 50% 
INCREASE IN PAT DESPITE 
LOSING A PART OF THE 
FIRST QUARTER TO THE 
PANDEMIC
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Business mix
Our objective is to blend our revenues across 
varied roofing products with a slant towards 
colour coated sheets. During the last few 
years, there has been an appreciable increase 
in the proportion of revenues being derived 
from colour coated sheets, which were not 
only value-added but also sold faster during 
the year under review. This was the result of 

increased incomes and aspirations across 
rural markets, building an effective traction. 
The colour coated roofing segment sold for 
realisations higher than the commoditised 
metal roofing sheets segment, strengthening 
profitability. A majority of the Company’s sales 
were generated from Bihar, West Bengal and 
North East India.

Liquidity
As a policy, we seek to maximise the use of 
accruals in our growth, moderating borrowed 
funds. During the year under review, we drew 
less than 10% of the sanctioned short-term 
loans (on average), which made it possible 
to moderate interest outflow and enhance 
profitability.

We enhanced our working capital hygiene 
through the following priorities: shrinking our 
receivables cycle through better terms of trade 
with our primary customers (trade partners), 
extension of our payables cycle, marketing 
products with strong offtake and graduation to 
a value-added product mix.

We place a premium on cash flows, preferring 
liquidity over profitability when the alternative 
is between maximum revenues with stretched 
liquidity and centrist revenues with enhanced 
liquidity. The success of this approach was 
evident in the cash flows. Over the years, 
the Company recognised the importance 

of working with an under-stretched Balance 
Sheet, marked by attractive cash in hand, 
rising interest cover, stronger gearing and 
lower Net debt/EBITDA. The Company 
focussed on protecting terms of trade (within 
tolerance limits), leveraging cash in hand 
to generate raw material discounts and 
addressing fresh capital expenditure with 
resources at the Company’s disposal (no 
incremental debt).

The result of this financial discipline was the 
Company possessed H57.56 Crore cash or 
equivalents (raw material inventory included) 
during the last financial year while gearing 
was an attractive 2.85%. This represents a 
watershed in the Company’s existence. By 
breaking the debt-funded chain, the Company 
will generate additional cash flows (that would 
otherwise have serviced debt), strengthening 
reinvestment, cash flow generation and 
enhance value.

Year FY20 FY21 FY22 

Cash and cash equivalents (H Crore) 22.83 6.55 7.18

Debt management
The Company’s total debt declined from 
H62.97 Crore in FY 2020-21 to H7.35 Crore 
during the year under review; net worth 
strengthened from H218.66 Crore to H257.46 
Crore during this period; gearing declined 
from 0.29 in FY 2020-21 to 0.03 in FY 2021-
22 as the Company grew net worth on the one 
hand and nominally used short-term debt to 
address its working capital requirements.

We believe that the capital expenditure 
notwithstanding, the Company is proceeding 
to a net cash position (cash on hand being 
higher than the total debt on the books). The 
cost of debt on the Company’s books was 
5.24% during the year under review (4.49% 
in the previous year), which we consider to be 
reasonable.

Year FY20 FY21 FY22

Debt repaid (H Crore) Nil Nil 55.62

Year FY20 FY21 FY22

Debt-equity ratio 0.21 0.29 0.03

55.62
H Crore, debt repaid 
by the Company in 
FY 22

BY BREAKING THE 
DEBT-FUNDED CHAIN, 
THE COMPANY WILL 
GENERATE ADDITIONAL 
CASH FLOWS (THAT 
WOULD OTHERWISE 
HAVE SERVICED DEBT), 
STRENGTHENING 
REINVESTMENT, CASH 
FLOW GENERATION 
AND ENHANCE VALUE.
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Way forward
The Company had a strong financial basis 
at the end of the fiscal year under review. Its 
net worth stood at H257.46 Crore as on 31st 
March, 2022, with H0.28 Crore in long-term 
debt and H7.07 Crore in short-term debt. The 
Company’s large net worth was the outcome 

of a long-term build-up of surpluses. In an 
unpredictable world, this significant net worth 
bias implies relative de-risking; it provides 
the Company patient and resilient capital in 
challenging periods.

Working capital management
Our focus is not just the quantitative growth 
of our business but also the hygiene of our 
numbers, reflected in our working capital 
management. We generally seek to draw less 
working capital than that sanctioned by the 
banks. During the course of the year under 
review, the Company drew less than 10% of 
the sanctioned working capital. There was 
a premium on competent working capital 
management during the year under review; 
there was a sharp increase in the cost of raw 
materials. The raw material for hot rolled coil 
used by the Company appreciated by 70% 
from trough to peak and 70% from year-
start to year-end, putting a premium on the 
ability to buy right (timing, price and quantity). 

Working capital as a proportion of the total 
employed capital increased from 12.10% 
to 52.60% across the last two years; the 
proportion of inventory in the working capital 
outlay remained approximately the same. 
The working capital tenure increased from 32 
days of turnover equivalent in FY 2020-21 to 
101 days in FY 2021-22. This was to mitigate 
the volatility of the market. The Company’s 
receivables cycle declined from 28 days of 
turnover equivalent to 13 days during the 
year under review.The Company did well to 
moderate its inventory size in terms of days of 
turnover equivalent, a validation of its supply 
chain partnerships and capacity to pay on time 
and in full.

Year FY20 FY21 FY22

Working capital as % of total capital employed 36.84 12.10 52.60

Rajesh Singhania
Chief Financial Officer

257.46
H Crore, net worth 
available with the 
Company as on 31st 
March 2022

THE COMPANY DID 
WELL TO MODERATE 
ITS INVENTORY SIZE 
IN TERMS OF DAYS OF 
TURNOVER EQUIVALENT, 
A VALIDATION OF 
ITS SUPPLY CHAIN 
PARTNERSHIPS AND 
CAPACITY TO PAY ON 
TIME AND IN FULL
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OUR 
COMPETITIVE 
STRENGTHS

Brand
The Company’s ‘5 star’ brand 

is respected in the markets of its 
presence for its trust, quality and 

dependability

Integration
The Company provides a 

product bouquet of cold rolled 
sheets, galvanised sheets and 

colour coated sheets and coils, a 
versatile consumer offering

Important downstream 
sectors

The Company services the 
growing needs of the domestic 

and industrial roofing segments 
in addition to the appliance 

sector

Under-borrowed
The Company is extensively 

under-borrowed; against a net 
worth of H257.46 Crore, the 

Company possessed total debt of 
H7.35 Crore as on 31st March 

2022

Convertor
The Company manufactures 

rolled products for some of the 
largest secondary steel producers 

in India on a conversion 
arrangement, whereby raw 
material is provided to the 

Company, making it a working 
capital-light segment of the 

Company’s revenues.

Accruals-driven
The Company generated H0.62 
Crore in free cash flows during 

the year under review, which was 
9.60% higher than the previous 

year, strengthening cash and 
cash equivalents on hand to 

H7.18 Crore.

Low competition
The Company enjoyed relatively 
low competition; the nearest peer 
competitor was 150 kilometer 
from the Company’s location; 
there were only two competitors 
within a 500 kilometer radius

Location
The Company’s location 
in Haldia ensured a dual 
advantage: 300 kilometer 
from the nearest primary steel 
manufacturer and a port-based 
location that facilitated raw 
material imports

Team
The Company comprises a team 
of worker professionals who 
possess a multi-year insight into 
rolling technologies, practices 
and customer requirements

Resource security
The Company procured 75% 
of its hot rolled coils from two 
of the largest primary steel 
manufacturers in India; 90% of 
its principal raw material was 
sourced from within a radius of 
300 kilometer

Cash
The Company possessed cash 
and cash equivalents of H7.18 
Crore as on 31st March 2022, 
a 9.6% increase over the 
corresponding figure on 31st 
March 2021.

Treasury income
The Company generated 
H8.23 Crore through treasury 
income from its cash and cash 
equivalents, accounting for 
20% of its pre-tax profit for FY 
2021-22
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HOW OUR MANUFACTURING 
FUNCTION PERFORMED IN 
2021-22

Overview
Manaksia Steel processes hot rolled steel 
for construction and cladding.

The Company has carved out a superior 
recall among consumers on account of 
its reliable and branded product.

The Company is engaged in the 
manufacture and sale of products under 
its brand as well as executing job work 
for some of the most demanding Indian 
steel giants.

This approach has helped enhance 
the utilisation of its manufacturing 
assets, strengthening profitability and 
competence to address the national 
growth.

Highlights, FY 2021-22
	� The Company produced around 43500 

tonnes of sheets compared to around 
39500 tonnes of sheets in FY 2020-21, an 
increase due to market acceptance.

	� The Company dispatched around 
15,000 metric tonnes of galvanised/
coloured sheets/coils in Q4, FY 2021-22, 
among the best performing quarters in the 
history of the Company

	� The Company made a complete 
modification of the rolling mill to increase 
operational speed; the mill was automated 

through the automatic gauge control 
system.

	� The Company installed a solar captive 
power plant with a 1MW capacity

	� The Company reduced downtime by 
3.5% over FY 2020-21

	� The Company launched two new profiles 
of colour coating sheets, widening its 
portfolio

	� The Company maintained all Covid 
protocols, vaccinated employees and 
deployed hand sanitisers for active use

	� The Company manufactured customised 
products, moderating inventory

Outlook
The Company plans to increase colour 
coating capacity from 150 tonnes per 
day to 200 tonnes per day in FY 2022-
23. It intends to enhance solar power 
plant capacity by another 1 MW. It plans 
to start a new galvanising line to address 
growing demand, facilitating a larger 
output of colour coating sheets.

STRENGTHS

Brand
The Company’s production 
is marketed under the 
‘5 Star’brand, respected 
for product integrity and 
dependability

Repairs and 
maintenance
The Company engaged in 
proactive and preservative 
maintenance of equipment, 
enhancing uptime

Market presence
The products of the Company 
are marketed across rural 
West Bengal, Bihar, Uttar 
Pradesh, Bhutan and Assam, 
which are growing markets 
for construction sheets

Automation
The investments of the 
Company in process 
automation enhanced quality 
consistency and productivity

Research and 
development
The Company focuses on 
research-led product and 
process improvements 
(physical and chemical 
testing), strengthening 
product (width and thickness) 
and profitability attributes

Team
The cross-functional 
manufacturing team of the 
Company (electrical and 
mechanical capabilities) 
enhanced equipment uptime 
and productivity
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HOW WE STRENGTHENED 
OUR SALES AND DISTRIBUTION 
FUNCTION DURING FY 2021-22

Overview
Manaksia Steel widened customer reach 
and enhanced product awareness.

The Company widened channel sales 

through the appointment of distributors.

The Company’s ‘5 star’ brand continued 
to be trusted on account of its quality 

and pricing consistency at par with 
industry standards across West Bengal, 
Bihar and Assam.

Our competitive strengths

Distribution support
The Company’s products are 
delivered to consumers through a 
network of about 85 distributors 
and 450 retailers.

Prompt delivery
The Company has established 
a recall for timely products 
delivery that has made possible 
lower inventories and moderated 
working capital outlay among 
trade partners

Brand
The ‘5 Star’ brand of the 
Company enjoys visibility and 
popularity due to its consistent 
quality

Initiatives, FY 2021-22
	� The Company added 10 new distributors 

for widening its network. The Company 
strengthened its supply chain, ensuring 
adequate raw material inventory in a 
volatile market environment

	� The Company engaged deeper with 
trade partners at a time of commodity 
inflation, lockdowns and other challenges

Outlook, FY 2022-23
The Company seeks to widen its 
presence by entering Jammu and 
Kerala, enhance its visibility in the colour 
coated sheet segment and strengthen 
its marketing team to address a wider 
geographic footprint.

The superior value of 
Manaksia’s colour coated 
steel products
	� Attractive appearance; enhances 

the beauty of houses

	� High durability compared to 
galvanised corrugated sheets

	� Reflects heat, which helps reduce 
indoor temperature

Big numbers

10
%, Manaksia 
Steels’ market 
share of colour 
coated sheets 
from among 
secondary flat steel 
manufacturers 
in the regions of 
the Company’s 
presence in FY 
2021-22

38.68
%, share of colour 
coated sheet 
revenues in FY 
2021-22

15
%, Manaksia 
Steels’ market 
share of galvanised 
sheets from among 
secondary flat steel 
manufacturers 
in the regions of 
the Company’s 
presence in FY 
2021-22

49.62
%, share of 
galvanised steel 
revenues in FY 
2021-22
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THE SOUL OF 
MANAKSIA STEEL
EMPLOYEES RELATE THEIR EXPERIENCE OF 

WORKING WITH THE COMPANY

“The speed at which the Company has 
digitalised is incredible. This has eliminated 
extensive paperwork, loss of documents in transit 
and replaced numerous visits to government 
departments with seamless engagement.”

Ajit Kumar Gupta,
Senior Manager, Exports

“I joined Manaksia Steel as a fresher in 1993 
and since then I never thought of leaving this 
company due to the collaborative engagement 
of colleagues and a professional working 
environment. This is a professional, yet 
personalised, company that has empowered me 
with the knowledge and confidence to address 
complex issues.”

Amitava Goswami,
Senior Manager, Imports

“The management always appreciates for 
our efforts regardless of the outcome. Being 
appreciated enhances our motivation. Years ago, 
once I was critically ill and couldn’t attend office 
for several months, the management stood by my 
side during that tough period.”

Rishi Sharma,
Marketing Manager

“We treat the entire work force as a member 
of our extended Manaksia family. I always find 
the Board of Directors beside me with guidance 
during any crisis and is accessible from anywhere-
anytime. This encourages me to do my best all the 
time.”

Indrajit Guha,
Plant Head, Haldia Factory

“I have worked with this management for 38 
years and never felt the need to explore better 
career opportunities. The management cares 
for its people and catalyses their personal and 
professional advancement.”

Prabir De,
Purchase Manager

“The Company provides a family culture where 
each person is supportive. We try to help in each 
other’s problems, professional or personal.”

Narayan Kabra,
Assistant Manager, Accounts

“A few years ago I was critically ill and couldn’t 
perform my duties. My company stood beside me 
during the crisis and empowered me to work from 
home. This is the culture that enhances employee 
retention at the Company.”

Ajay Sharma,
Company Secretary
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ESG: THE CORE OF MANAKSIA 
STEELS’S PERSONALITY

Overview
The magic abbreviation being 
increasingly used the world over 
to appraise and filter companies is 
‘ESG’. ESG has emerged as a litmus 
test being used by analysts, opinion 
makers, governance agencies, media, 

communities and bankers to appraise 
the quality of corporate managements. 
This has helped extend the appraisal 
discipline beyond the Balance 
Sheet; in a number of instances, 
this appraisal has been extended 

backwards to ESG with the perspective 
that soon the effects of high/low 
compliance will inevitably translate to 
the Balance Sheet.

So what is ESG?
At one level, ESG is the abbreviated form 
of Environment-Social-Governance. The 
environment segment of the business 
addresses the various initiatives taken 
by the Company to moderate its carbon 
footprint through a more responsible 
utilisation of finite resources coupled 
with extensive compliances. The Social 
component of ESG comprises a mix 
of the Company’s relationships – with 
vendors (land, capital equipment and 
raw materials), employees, customers 
and communities. The Governance 

component comprises a review of how 
the Company intends to manage its 
business, comprising an understanding 
of processes, practices and systems.

The combination of E, S and G covers 
virtually every relevant aspect of a 
operations of the Company critical to 
its sustainability. There is a growing 
recognition that even a company 
beginning to respect ESG standards is on 
a journey towards a global benchmark 
and likely to be evaluated favourably 

anywhere in the world.

However, there is a contribution of ESG 
that extends beyond compliance. There 
is a practical and business-relevant 
perspective as well. In a world marked by 
Black Swans, robust governance makes it 
possible to shorten downcycles coupled 
with extended up-cycles, enhancing 
stakeholder confidence and shareholder 
value.

Manaksia and ESG
At Manaksia Steels, environment-social-
governance (ESG) is particularly critical 
as the product needs to be built with 
inputs derived from nature directly or 
indirectly and any deviation from the 
mean or perceived irresponsibility can 
affect respect or market position.

The environment component at our 
Company ensures that our business 
consumes environmentally responsible 

resources, consumes only as much as 
is moderately needed, recycles waste, 
consumes moderate fossil fuels and 
builds resistance to climate change.

The social component addresses the 
need to invest in employees, vendors, 
customers and community engagement, 
a framework of relationships that protects 
the Company from unexpected supply or 
demand or production shocks.

The Company’s commitment to 
governance comprises the articulation 
of business strategy, values, codes of 
conduct, Board responsibilities and 
composition as well as the organisational 
commitment to UNGC principles.

OUR SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY
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Environment 
initiatives

Social 
initiatives

Governance 
initiatives

	� The Company installed a 1 MW solar plant 
as a pilot project at its Haldia plant

	� The Company intends the use of the relatively 
clean LPG over high sulphur liquid fuel

	� The Company produces an environment 
friendly product that can be recycled

	� The Company is in compliance with all 
environment-related statutory norms.

	� The Company provided free vaccination to its 
entire workforce and family members

	� The Company facilitated the distribution of 
free masks and hand sanitisers

	� The Company provided a work-from-home 
convenience to employees

	� The Company developed standard operating 
protocols to enhance employee safety

	� The Company trained workers related to 
safety measures

	� The Company appointed experienced 
Directors on the Board with more than 50% of 
the Directors being Independent

	� The Company implemented the 
Whistleblower mechanism that enabled 
employees to report concerns to the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee.

	� The Company addressed investor complaints 
in time.

	� The Company encourages auditors to 
engage in a real-time internal audit; it 
submitted quarterly audit reports to the Audit 
Committee and Board along with an Action 
Taken report.

	� The Company framed necessary policies 
stipulated by the Companies Act and SEBI 

Listing Regulations and the endeavors to 
implement policies

	� A separate meeting of the Independent 
Directors is held every year inter alia to evaluate 
the performance of individual Directors and the 
Board

	� The Board was updated about the latest 
statutory and regulatory amendments issued by 
various government departments.

	� The Company maintained transparent 
shareholder communication and price-sensitive 
information was provided to shareholders 
through announcements filed with the stock 
exchanges

Overview
Manaksia Steel engages in various corporate social 
responsibility activities. The Company provided preference to 
the local areas around which it operates. Over the years, the 
Company contributed in education, health care and livestock 
development through its CSR programmes.

Friends of Tribal Society (FTS): FTS is a non-government and 
voluntary organisation committed to the uplift of underprivileged 
rural and tribal masses. It provides functional literacy, 

health care / arogya, development education / gramothan, 
empowerment, ethics & value education / sanskar. FTS runs 
about 100,000 Ekal Vidyalayas (one teacher school). Manaksia 
has sponsored around 330 such Ekal Vidyalayas.

Girl child education
Manaksia Steel believes that girl child education prioritises 
economic and social upliftment. The Company makes an 
annual contribution towards girl child education.
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MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Global economic review
The global economy grew an estimated 
5.9% in 2021 compared to a de-growth 
of 3.3% in 2020. This improvement was 
largely due to the increased vaccination 
rollout, the world over and a revival in 
economic activity based on catch-up 
consumption.

The global economy was affected by 
prohibitive shipping freight rates, a 

shortage of shipping containers and 
semiconductor chips in 2021, affecting 
global economic recovery. Inflation was 
at its highest since 2011, catalysed by 
a run up in commodity prices. Some 
emerging and developing economies 
were positioned to withdraw policy 
support to contain inflation even as the 
economic recovery was still incomplete.

The global economy is projected to grow 
at a modest 2.6% in 2022 following the 
Russia-Ukraine crisis. A higher interest 
rate environment could affect emerging 
markets and developing economies with 
large foreign currency borrowings and 
external financing needs in 2022.

Performance of major economies

Regional growth (%) 2021 2020

World output 5.9 (3.3)

Advanced economies 5.0 (4.9)

Emerging and developing economies 6.3 (2.4)

(Source: IMF, World Bank, UNCTAD)

United States
The country reported  
a GDP growth 
of 5.7% in 2021 
compared to a 
de-growth of 3.4% 
in 2020, following 
the government’s 
investment of trillions 
of dollars in COVID 
relief.

China
The country’s 
GDP grew 8.1% in 
2021 compared 
to 2.3% in 2020 
despite it being the 
novel coronavirus 
epicentre.

United Kingdom
The country’s GDP 
grew 7.5% in 2021 
compared to a 9.9% 
de-growth in 2020.

Japan
The country reported 
a growth of 1.7% 
in 2021 following 
a contraction in the 
previous year.

Germany
The country reported 
a GDP growth 
of 2.9% in 2021 
compared to a 
decline of 4.9% in 
2020.

(Source: World Bank, IMF, Business Standard, Times of India)
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The country’s manufacturing sector grew 
an estimated 12.5%, the agriculture 
sector grew by 3.9%, mining and 
quarrying grew by 14.3%, construction 
grew by 10.7% and electricity, gas and 
water supply grew by 8.5% in FY 2021-
22.

There were positive features of the Indian 
economy during the year under review.

Foreign direct investments (FDI) in India 
increased by 15% to USD 74.01 Billion 
in 2021 from USD 87 Billion in 2020, a 
validation of global investing confidence 
in India’s growth story. The government 
approved 100% FDI for insurance 
intermediaries and increased FDI limit in 
the insurance sector from 49% to 74% in 
the Union Budget 2021-22.

India surpassed the H88,000 Crore 
target set for asset monetisation in FY 
2021-22, rising over H97,000 Crore with 
roads, power, coal, mining and minerals 
accounting for a large chunk of the 
transactions.

The Indian government launched a four-
year H6 Lakh Crore asset monetisation 
plan (roads and highways, pipelines, 
power transmission lines, telecom towers, 
railway station re-development, private 
trains, tracks, goods sheds, dedicated 
freight corridor, railway stadiums, 
airports, projects in major ports, coal 

mining projects, mineral mining blocks, 
national stadia, redevelopment of 
colonies and hospitality assets).

In 2021, India was the largest recipient 
of global remittances. The country 
received USD 87 Billion during 2021, 
with the US being the largest source 
(20%). India’s foreign exchange reserves 
stood at an all-time high of USD 
642.45 Billion as on 3rd September, 
2021, crossing USD 600 Billion in forex 
reserves for the first time.

India’s currency weakened 3.59% from 
H73.28 to H75.91 to a US dollar through 
FY 22. The consumer price index (CPI) 
of India stood at an estimated 5.3% in 
FY 2021-22. India reported improving 
Goods and Services Tax (GST) collections 
month-on-month in the second half of FY 
2021-22 following the relaxation of the 
lockdown, validating the consumption-
driven improvement in the economy. The 
country recorded its all-time highest GST 
collections in March 2022 standing at 
H1.42 Lakh Crore, which is 15% higher 
than the corresponding period in 2021.

India ranked 62 in the 2020 World 
Bank’s Ease of Doing Business ranking. 
The country received positive FPIs worth 
H51,000 Crore in 2021 as the country 
ranked fifth among the world’s top 
leading stock markets with a market 

capitalisation of USD 3.21 Trillion in 
March 2022.

The fiscal deficit was estimated at H15.91 
Trillion for the year ending 31st March, 
2022 on account of higher government 
expenditure during the year under review.

India’s per capita income was estimated 
to have increased 16.28% from H1.29 
Lakh in FY 2020-21 to H1.50 Lakh in 
FY 2021-22 following a relaxation in 
lockdowns and increased vaccine rollout.

India’s tax collections increased to a 
record H27.07 Lakh Crore in FY 2021-
22 compared with a budget estimate of 
H22.17 Lakh Crore. While direct taxes 
increased 49%, indirect tax collections 
increased 30%. The tax-to-GDP ratio 
jumped from 10.3% in FY21 to 11.7% in 
FY 2021-22, the highest since 1999.

Retail inflation in March at 6.95% was 
above the RBI’s tolerance level of 6% but 
fuel prices played no part in this surge. 
Retail inflation spiked to a 17-month 
high in March 2022, above the upper 
limit of the RBI’s tolerance band for the 
third straight month. (Source: Economic 
Times, IMF, World Bank, EIU, Business 
Standard, McKinsey, SANDRP, Times of 
India, Livemint, InvestIndia.org, Indian 
Express, NDTV, Asian Development Bank)

Indian economic reforms and Budget 2022-23 provisions
The Budget 2022-23 seeks to lay the 
foundation of the Indian economy 
over the ‘Amrit Kaal’ period of the 
next 25 years leading to 100 years of 
independence in 2047. The government 
is emphasising the role of PM gatishakti, 
inclusive development, productivity 
enhancement & investment, sunrise 
opportunities, energy transition and 

climate action, as well as financing of 
investments.

The capital expenditure target of the 
Indian government expanded by 35.4% 
from H5.54 Lakh Crore to H7.50 Lakh 
Crore. The effective capital expenditure 
for FY 2022-23 is seen at H10.7 Lakh 
Crore. An outlay of H5.25 Lakh Crore 

was made to the Ministry of Defence, 
which is 13.31% of the total budget 
outlay. A boost was provided to India’s 
electric vehicle policy ‘Scheme for 
Faster Adoption and Manufacturing of 
(Hybrid and) Electric Vehicle in India’. 
An announcement of nearly H20,000 
Crore was made for the PM Gati Shakti 
National Master Plan to catalyse the 

Indian economic overview
The Indian economy reported an 
attractive recovery in FY 2021-22, its 
GDP rebounding from a de-growth of 
7.3% in FY 2020-21 to a growth of 
8.7% in FY 2021-22. By the close of 

FY 2021-22, India was among the six 
largest global economies, its economic 
growth rate was the fastest among major 
economies (except China), its population 
is around 1.40 Billion, the second most 

populous in the world and its rural 
under-consumed population, arguably 
the largest in the world.

Y-o-Y growth of the Indian economy

 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 

Real GDP growth (%) 6.1  4.2  (7.3) 8.7

Growth of the Indian economy, 2021-22

Q1, FY22 Q2, FY22 Q3, FY22 Q4, FY22

Real GDP growth (%) 20.1 8.4 5.4 4.1
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infrastructure sector. An expansion of 
25,000 kilometer was initiated for FY 
2022-23 for the national highways 
network. To boost the agricultural sector, 
an allocation of H2.37 Lakh Crore was 
made towards the procurement of wheat 
and paddy under the MSP operations. 
An outlay of H1.97 Lakh Crore was 
announced for the Production Linked 
Incentive (PLI) schemes across 13 sectors.

Outlook

The Indian economy is projected to 
grow by around 7% in FY 2022-23 
following inflation impact and higher 
interest rates. Across the next three 
years, capital expenditure in core 
sectors - cement, metal, oil refining and 
power - should be about H5 Trillion. 
Besides, the government’s production 

linked incentives (PLI)–led capex should 
generate an incremental H1.4 Trillion 
in sectors like consumer durables, 
pharmaceuticals and automobiles. These 
realities are likely to ensure sustained 
national growth across the foreseeable 
future.

Indian steel industry review
India manufactured 120 Million tonnes 
of steel during FY 2021-22, growing by 
18% compared to the last fiscal year. 
The growth in the Indian steel sector was 
fueled by growing consumer demand, 
domestic availability of raw materials 
such as iron ore and cost-effective 
labour. Steel consumption in the country 
stood at 106 Million tonnes during 
the year under review. India exported 
finished steel totaling 13.5 Million tonnes 
worth H1 Lakh Crore in FY 2021-22.

India became the only country among 
the top 10 steel manufacturing nations 
globally to have enhanced steel 

production between January to March 
2022 compared to the same period in 
the previous year. India produced 31.9 
Million tonnes of steel, a growth of 5.9% 
during this period. Out of this, 10.9 
Million tonnes of steel was produced 
only in March 2022 with a growth rate 
of 4.45% over the corresponding period 
last year.

According to the National Steel Policy 
2017, the government has set a goal 
to increase the country’s crude steel 
production output to 300 Million 
tonnes by 2030. The policy intends 
to ramp up the domestic per capita 

steel consumption to 160 kilogram by 
2030. Amid concerns of global and 
demand uncertainties, the Indian steel 
sector is expected to remain firm on 
account of robust domestic demand 
from government and private sector. 
However, India Ratings and Research has 
maintained a ‘neutral outlook’ on the 
steel sector for FY 2022-23 due to high 
raw material inflation that would result 
in higher prices and reduction of volume 
and margin. (Source: Economic Times, 
Business Standard, SP global)

Government initiatives
	� The production-linked incentive (PLI) 

scheme for specialty steel was approved by 
the Union cabinet. The scheme is expected 
to attract investment worth H400 Billion 
and expand steel capacity by 25 Million 
tonnes till FY 2026-27.

	� The government signed a MoU with 
Russia to carry out R&D in the steel 
sector and produce coking coal (used in 
steelmaking).

	� The government signed a Memorandum 
of Cooperation (MoC) with the Ministry of 
Economy, Trade and Industry, Government 

of Japan, to strengthen the steel sector 
through joint activities under the framework 
of India–Japan steel dialogue.

	� The Government plans to invest USD 70 
Million in the eastern region of the country 
through rapid development of the steel 
sector.

	� The government allocated H47 Crore 
(USD 6.2 Million) to the Ministry of Steel 
under the Union Budget 2022-23.

	� The Government approved the National 
Steel Policy (NSP) 2017 with the goal to 

create a globally competitive steel industry 
in India.

	� The Ministry of Steel established an 
industry-driven Steel Research and 
Technology Mission of India (SRTMI) along 
with the public and private sector steel 
companies to spearhead research and 
development activities.

	� The Government of India increased 
import duty on most steel items twice by 
2.5% and measures like anti-dumping and 
safeguard duties on iron and steel items 
were imposed.

SWOT analysis

Strengths

	� Substantial availability 
of iron ore and other 
minerals

	� Experienced manpower 
and low per unit labour 
cost

	� Increasing demand during 
post pandemic period

Opportunities

	� Low per capita 
consumption

	� Growing rural market

	� Governments thrust on 
infrastructure development

	� Affordable international 
market penetration

Weaknesses

	� High cost of capital

	� Reduced labour 
productivity

	� High cost of basic inputs

	� High social costs

	� Poor quality of basic 
infrastructure

	� Unorganised distribution 
network

Threats

	� Slow industrial growth

	� Technological evolution

	� Substitution from 
aluminum and plastics

	� Extended Russia-Ukraine 
war
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Company review
Manaksia Steels Limited is a multi-
location, multi-product, light engineering 
company in the field of metal products 
and metal formation. The Company has 
been engaged in various manufacturing 
activities since 2014-15; its core 

manufacturing activity is to produce 
steel flat products like cold rolled steel 
sheets, galvanised steel sheets and color 
coated sheets. The major products of 
the Company include cold rolled steel 
sheets and coils (5.94% of revenues 

in FY 22), galvanised steel sheets and 
coils (49.62% of revenues in FY 22) 
and colour coated steel sheets and coils 
(38.68% of revenues in FY 22).

Financial review
Revenues: Revenue from operations 
reported a 30% growth from H387.96 
Crore in 2020-21 to reach H504.52 
Crore in 2021-22. Other income of the 
Company reported a 38.40% growth 
and accounted for a 1.60% share of 
the Company’s revenues, reflecting the 
Company’s dependence on its core 
business operations.

Expenses: Total expenses increased by 
29.28% from H360.24 Crore in 2020-21 
to H465.72 Crore due to the increased 
scale of operations and investments made 
in the future. Raw material cost, accounting 
for a 77.42% share of the Company’s 
revenues increased by 34.20% from 
H295.81 Crore in 2020-21 to H396.98 
Crore in 2021-22 owing to an increase in 

the operational scale. Employees expenses 
accounting for a 2.57% share of the 
Company’s revenues increased by 6.82% 
from H12.33 Crore in 2020-21 to H13.17 
Crore in 2021-22.

Key ratios
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

EBITDA/turnover (%) 9.32 8.70

EBITDA/net interest ratio (x) 58.21 29.65

Debt-equity ratio 0.03 0.29

Return on net worth (%) 12.42 9.56

Book value per share (H) 39.29 33.37

Earnings per share (H) 4.51 3.00

Debtors turnover ratio 28.37 13.09

Inventory turnover (days) 65 86

Interest coverage ratio (x) 51.24 24.60

Current ratio (x) 6.17 1.42

Net profit margin (%) 5.86 5.07

Internal control systems and 
their adequacy
The Company has a strong internal 
control procedures in place that 
commensurates with its size and 
operations. The Board of Directors, 
responsible for the internal control 
system, sets the guidelines and verifies 
its adequacy, effectiveness and 
application. The Company’s internal 
control system is designed to ensure 
management efficiency, measurability 
and verifiability, reliability of accounting 
and management information through 
SAP, compliance with all applicable laws 
and regulations and the protection of 
the Company’s assets. This is to timely 
identify and manage the Company’s 
risks (operational, compliance-related, 
economic and financial).

Human resources
Manaksia Steel’s human resource 
practices helped reinforce market 
leadership. The Company invested in 
formal and informal training as well 
as on-the-job learning. It emphasised 
engagements with employees by 
providing an enriched workplace, 
challenging job profile and regular 
dialogues with the management. The 
Company creates leaders from within, 
strengthening prospects. The Company’s 
employee strength stood at 176 as on 
31st March, 2022.

Cautionary statement
This statement made in this section 
describes the Company’s objectives, 
projections, expectation and estimations 
which may be ‘forward looking 
statements’ within the meaning 
of applicable securities laws and 
regulations. Forward– looking statements 
are based on certain assumptions 
and expectations of future events. 
The Company cannot guarantee that 
these assumptions and expectations 
are accurate or will be realised by the 
Company. Actual result could differ 
materially from those expressed in the 
statement or implied due to the influence 
of external factors which are beyond the 
control of the Company. The Company 
assumes no responsibility to publicly 
amend, modify or revise any forward 
looking statements on the basis of any 
subsequent developments.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Economic risk
Economic slowdown might 
hamper steel industry growth

Currency volatility risk
Volatile forex movements can 
affect profitability in case of 
product exports and imports.

Employee risk
The steel industry is marked by 
high attrition levels and inability 
to attract skilled professionals

Funding risk
Inability to fund its capex would 
affect the business operations 
of the Company

Competition risk
Entry of new players might 
affect the market share of the 
Company.

Quality risk
Decline in product quality 
might hamper the Company’s 
brand and revenues

Mitigation
The Indian economy grew by 8.7% in 2021-22, rebounding from the sharp contraction 
of 7.3% in 2020-21. The Company intends to capitalise on the macroeconomic 
opportunities and headroom of growth available in the steel sector on account of low 
per capita consumption figures.

Mitigation
The Company protected the receivables & payables through timely and effective 
hedging to mitigate the risk

Mitigation
Nearly 70% of the employees were associated by the Company for more than five 
years. The retention of senior management executives stood at 100% in FY 2021-22

Mitigation
The Company possesses surplus funds; capex is funded largely from accruals, 
minimising external risk.

Mitigation
The Company is increasing its production to gain market share by introducing cost 
effective value added products. The Company intends to mitigate this challenge by 
enhancing its penetration across new geographies and acquire new customers while 
increasing wallet share with existing customers.

Mitigation
The Company’s operations are marked by stringent quality norms stated by customers 
or quality agencies and certifications (ISO 9001:2015). The Company is registered with 
Bureau of Indian Standard and produces all its products with ISI marks.
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Directors’ Report 
Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 21st (Twenty First) Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together 
with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(H in Lacs)

PARTICULARS STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Total Income 51274.85 39399.18 61915.58 51154.59

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 4058.69 2685.95 4893.43 3440.62

Less: Tax Expenses

-  Current Tax 1065.50 700.00 1156.34 760.88

-  Deferred Tax 37.21 17.46 205.36 25.41

Profit for the period 2955.98 1968.49 3531.73 2654.33

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 924.19 572.50 791.06 510.38

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 3880.17 2540.99 4322.79 3164.71

Balance brought forward from previous year 8393.12 5852.12 8809.63 5644.91

Total Amount available for appropriation 12273.29 8393.11 13132.42 8809.62

Appropriations:

Transfer to General Reserve - - - -

Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet 12273.29 8393.11 13132.42 8809.62

Total 12273.29 8393.11 13132.42 8809.62

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK
Kindly refer to ‘Management Discussion and Analysis Report’ 
which forms a part of this Annual Report.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There has been no change in the nature of business of the 
Company during the year under review.

DIVIDEND
In view of the planned business growth, your Directors deem it 
proper to preserve the resources of the Company for its future 
and therefore do not propose any dividend for the Financial Year 
ended 31st March, 2022.

No amount was required to be transferred to Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (IEPF) during the period under review.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Board did not propose any amount for transfer to General 
Reserve.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL
The paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on 31st 
March, 2022 stood at Rs. 655.34 Lacs. During the year under 
review, the Company has not issued any further shares.

DETAILS PERTAINING TO SHARES IN SUSPENSE 
ACCOUNT
Details of shares held in the demat suspense account as required 
under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended (hereinafter referred to as ”Listing Regulations”) forms 
a part of the Corporate Governance Report.

DETAILS UNDER SECTION 67(3) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013 (HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS ‘THE 
ACT’) IN RESPECT OF ANY SCHEME OF PROVISIONS 
OF MONEY FOR PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES BY 
EMPLOYEES OR BY TRUSTEES FOR THE BENEFIT OF 
EMPLOYEES
There were no such instances during the year under review.

OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
The Financial Year 2021-22 was very volatile and volume and 
price were also unstable. However, the operation of the Company 
at standalone level has grown by 25% and at the consolidated 
level by 20%. The standalone profit has also gone up by 50% 
compared to last fiscal. The Company was able to get hold of 
its market share due to its brand value created over the years 
for quality and durability of its products. The market is slowly but 
steadily shifting towards colour coated from galvanized sector. 
The end users also prefer steel roofing sheets compared to 
asbestos considering the health hazards. During the FY 2022-23, 
the management is exploring the possibility of increasing capacity 
utilization in the colour coated segment and it is expected that 
the Company can see a growth both in the top and bottom line. 
The management is also focusing on using the non-conventional 
source of energy and a solar plant of 1 mw capacity as a pilot 
project has been installed in the plant. In coming years, the 
Company is focusing on increasing the utilization of environment 
friendly LPG and Solar Energy.
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Further, the details of operation and business performance of the 
Company has been elaborated in the ‘Management Discussion 
and Analysis Report’ forming part of this Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under 
review, as stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(e) read with Para B 
to Schedule V of the Listing Regulations forms part of this Annual 
Report.

DETAILS RELATING TO MATERIAL VARIATIONS
The Company has not issued any prospectus or letter of offer 
during the last five years and raised no money from public and as 
such the requirement for providing the details relating to material 
variation is not applicable to the Company for the year under 
review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE 
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY 
TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE 
AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT
There is no material change and commitment of the Company 
during the period between the end of the financial year 2021-22 
and the date of this report which can affect the financial position 
of the Company for the year under review.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETRUN
Pursuant to Section 92(3) and 134(2)(a) of the Act, draft Annual 
Return in Form MGT-7 has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company and the web link thereto is https://www.manaksiasteels.
com/pdf/MGT-7_FY 2021-22.

The final Annual Return in Form MGT-7 will be filed with the 
MCA, as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 shall 
also be uploaded on the website of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Company follows the corporate governance guidelines 
and best practices sincerely, and discloses timely and accurate 
information regarding the operations and performance of the 
Company.

Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Para C to Schedule V of the 
Listing Regulations, a Report on Corporate Governance along 
with a certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
confirming compliance with the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance is forming part of this Directors’ Report and marked 
as Annexure-“A”.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS
The details of number of meetings of the Board of Directors of 
the Company held during the year have been provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Directors’ 
Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls (IFC) and 
compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, 

work performed by the internal auditors, statutory auditors, cost 
auditors, secretarial auditors and the reviews performed by 
management and the relevant Board Committees, including the 
Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s 
IFC were adequate and effective during Financial year 2021-22.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the 
Act, the Board of Directors of the Company, to the best of its 
knowledge and ability, confirms that:

a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 
31st March, 2022, the applicable accounting standards 
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures, if any;

b)	 the Directors had selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of 
the financial year 2021-22 and of the profit of the Company 
for that period;

c)	 the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

d)	 the annual accounts had been prepared on a going concern 
basis;

e)	 the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be 
followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls were adequate and operating effectively;

f)	 the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, Mr. Varun Agrawal, Managing 
Director of the Company has been re-appointed for a further 
period of three years w.e.f. 11th February, 2022 and the same 
has been approved by the shareholders through postal ballot 
e-voting. Except as stated above, there has been no change in 
the composition of Board of Directors of the Company.

Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the provision of Section 152 of the Act read 
with Article 87(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company, 
Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 00520769), Director, is liable 
to retire by rotation at the ensuing 21st Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

Independent Directors

The Company’s Independent Directors have submitted requisite 
declarations confirming that they continue to meet the criteria of 
independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. The Independent 
Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with 
Schedule IV of the Act and the Company’s Code of Conduct.
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All the Independent Directors of the Company have registered 
themselves with the Independent Directors’ Data Bank maintained 
by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. In terms of Section 150 
of the Act read with Rule 6(4) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent 
Directors are required to undertake online proficiency self-
assessment test conducted by the IICA within a period of two 
years from the date of inclusion of their names in the data bank 
unless they fall within the exempted category. The Independent 
Directors who were not falling within exempted category have 
qualified the online self-assessment proficiency. In the opinion 
of the Board, all the Independent Directors of the Company 
possesses requisite integrity, expertise and experience.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) has issued 
Secretarial Standard-1 (SS-1) on ‘Meeting of the Board of 
Directors’ and Secretarial Standard–2 (SS-2) on ‘General 
Meeting’ and both the Secretarial Standards have been approved 
by the Central Government under section 118(10) of the Act. 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 118(10) of the Act, it is 
mandatory for the company to observe the secretarial standards 
with respect to the Board Meeting and General Meeting. The 
Company has adopted and followed the set of principles 
prescribed in the respective Secretarial Standards for convening 
and conducting Meetings of Board of Directors, General Meeting 
and matters related thereto. The Directors have devised proper 
systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and 
operating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
Agrawal Tondon & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration 
No. 329088E) had been appointed as Statutory Auditors of 
the Company at the 18th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of 
the Company held on 25th September, 2019, for a period of 
five consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion of the 
18th AGM till the conclusion of the 23rd AGM of the Company 
on such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of 
Directors based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee 
and mutually agreed by the Statutory Auditors, in addition to the 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, as may be incurred by 
them for the purpose of audit.

There is no observation (including any qualification, reservation, 
adverse remarks or disclaimer) of the Auditors in their Audit 
Report that may call for any explanation from the Directors. The 
specific notes forming part of the accounts referred to in Auditor’s 
Report are self-explanatory and give complete information.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, read with Regulation 24A of the Listing 
Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company had 
appointed MKB & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, 
Kolkata as Secretarial Auditors to conduct Secretarial Audit of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2021-22.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 as given by the 
Secretarial Auditors for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2022, forms a part of the Directors’ Report and marked as 
Annexure-‘’B’’.

As detailed in the previous year’s Directors Report, BSE Limited 
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited had imposed fine 
upon the Company for non compliance with Regulation 17(1) 
of the Listing Regulations. The Company had paid fine, rectified 
the unintentional default and filed application before relevant 
committees of the respective Stock Exchanges for waiver of 
fine. National Stock Exchange of India Limited, based on the 
Company’s application has waived the fine and refunded the 
fine amount. BSE Limited, based on the Company’s application 
has also waived the fine for March, 2019 quarter.

The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the Company has 
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, and 
Guidelines and that there were no deviations or non-compliances. 
There are no observations (including any qualifications, 
reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer) of the Secretarial 
Auditors in their Audit Report that may call for any explanations 
from the Director’s of the Company.

The Company has appointed Bajaj Todi & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries, Kolkata to carry out necessary audit in 
terms of Regulation 24A of Listing Regulations read with SEBI 
Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 
2019. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report received from 
Bajaj Todi & Associates was placed before the Board and had 
been filed with the Stock Exchanges where the Securities of the 
Company are listed.

COST AUDITORS
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 148 of the Act, cost 
audit is applicable on your Company for manufacturing items 
covered under Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014. The Board of Directors of your Company 
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee had appointed 
B. Mukhopadhyay & Co, Cost Accountants, Kolkata, as Cost 
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22. As 
required under the Act, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditors for FY 2021-22 was ratified by the shareholders in the 
AGM held on 21st September, 2021.

The Board, pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, 
read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 has 
re-appointed M/s B. Mukhopadhyay & Co, Cost Accountants, 
Kolkata, as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2022-23 and accordingly, a resolution for seeking Members 
ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for 
the FY 2022-23, would be placed before the forthcoming 21st 
AGM of the Company. The Cost Auditors are expected to file the 
cost audit report with Central Government within the specified 
period.

FRAUD REPORTING
There was no fraud reported by the Auditors of the Company 
under Section 143(12) of the Act to the Audit Committee or the 
Board of Directors during the financial year under review.
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DISCLOSURE ON EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION/ 
PURCHASE SCHEME
During the year under review, your Company has not provided 
any employee stock option / purchase scheme.

PARTICUALRS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE ACT
The full particulars of the loans given, investments made, 
guarantees given or security provided and the purpose for which 
the loan or investment or guarantee or security is proposed to 
be utilised as per the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are 
provided in the notes to the Financial Statements (Refer note no. 
4 and 8)

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENTS 
WITH RELATED PARTIES
In compliance with the provisions of the Act and the Listing 
Regulations, Related Party Transactions (RPTs) were placed 
before the Audit Committee for approval. Omnibus approval of 
the Audit Committee was obtained on an yearly basis for the 
transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. The 
transactions pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted, were 
reviewed periodically and a detailed quarterly statement of all 
Related Party Transactions duly certified by the Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company was placed before the Audit Committee. 
The policy on RPTs, as approved by the Board, is available on the 
Company’s website at http://www.manaksiasteels.com and the 
weblink thereto http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/
corporate-policies/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf

During the year under review, all RPTs were on Arm’s Length Price 
basis and in the Ordinary Course of Business. The particulars 
of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in 
Section 188(1) of the Act in the prescribed Form AOC-2, forms 
part of this Annual Report.

There was no other material RPT entered into by the Company 
with Promoters, Directors, KMPs or other designated persons 
during the FY 2021-22.

In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of Listing 
Regulations and the Act shareholders’ approval shall be taken 
for material related party transactions to be entered into by the 
Company and/or its subsidiaries during the FY 2022-23.

There are no materially significant transactions entered into by 
your Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial 
Personnels (KMPs), which have potential conflict with the interest 
of the Company at large.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS/ADVANCES/INVESTMENTS 
OUTSTANDING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR AS 
REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE V OF THE LISTING 
REGULATIONS
The details of related party disclosures with respect to loans/ 
advances/ investments at the year end and maximum outstanding 
amount thereof during the year as required under Para A of Schedule 
V of the Listing Regulations have been provided in the notes to the 
Financial Statements of the Company (Refer note no. 36).

DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The details required pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)
(m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo forms 
part of this Directors Report and marked as Annexure-‘’C’’.

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and 
prioritization of risks followed by coordinated efforts to minimize, 
monitor and mitigate the probability and/or impact of unfortunate 
events or to maximize the realization of opportunities.

The Company has structured Risk Management System, designed 
to safeguard the organization from various risks through 
adequate and timely actions. The Company manages, monitors 
and reports on its risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability 
to achieve its objectives. The major risks have been identified 
by the Company and its mitigation process/measures have been 
formulated.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Act 
read with Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, has in place 
an Audit Committee. The Committee focuses on certain specific 
areas and makes informed decisions in line with the delegated 
authority and function according to the roles and defined scope. 
The details of composition, terms of reference and number of 
meetings held for the Committee is provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

There were no such instances wherein the Board had not accepted 
recommendation of the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Company pursuant to the requirement of provisions of 
Section 178(1) of the Act read with Regulation 19 of the Listing 
Regulations has in place the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. The details of composition, terms of reference and 
number of meetings held for the Committee is provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report.

The Company, pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the Act 
and Regulation 19 read with Para A of Part D of Schedule II of 
the Listing Regulations, upon recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee has devised a Remuneration Policy 
applicable to all Executives of the Company i.e. Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnels and Senior Management. The said policy 
forms part of this Director’s Report and marked as Annexure- ’’D”.

There were no such instances wherein the Board had not 
accepted recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
As required by the provisions of Section 178(5) of the Act read 
with Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has 
in place the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The details of 
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composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held for 
the Committee is provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee (hereinafter referred to as “CSR Committee”) 
in accordance with Section 135 of the Act and Rules made 
thereunder. The composition and the detailed terms of reference 
of the CSR Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance 
Report. The CSR activities are inter-alia, focused on Improving 
Literacy among Rural Tribal People and Promoting Education.

The report on CSR activities pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section 
(3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 forms part of 
this Director’s Report and marked as Annexure-‘’E’’.

The Company has formulated CSR Policy indicating the activities 
to be undertaken by the Company. The Policy has also been 
uploaded on the Company’s website and the weblink thereto 
is: https://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-
policies/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf

There were no such instances wherein the Board had not accepted 
recommendation of the CSR Committee.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
The Company has constituted Internal Complaint Committee in 
compliance with the provisions of Sexual Harrasment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Any employee may report the complaint to the Internal Complaint 
Committee formed for this purpose. The Company affirms that 
during the year under review, adequate access was provided to 
any complainant who wished to register a complaint. During the 
year, the Company has not received any complaint on sexual 
harassment.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE 
AND PERFORMANCE OF ITS COMMITTEES AND 
INDIVIDUAL DIRCETORS
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Regulation 25 of 
the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an Annual 
Evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Directors 
individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its 
Committees. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Regulation 
25 of the Listing Regulations read with the Guidance Note on 
Board Evaluation of SEBI dated 5th January, 2017, the NRC 
Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation, 
in a structured questionnaire form after taking into consideration 
various aspects of the Boards functioning, composition of the 
Board and its Committees, culture, execution, diligence, integrity, 
awareness and performance of specific laws, duties, obligations 
and governance, on the basis of which, the Board has carried out 
the Annual Evaluation of its own performance, the performance 
of Board Committee and of Directors individually, by way of 
individual and collective feedback from Directors. Further, 
pursuant to para VII of Schedule IV of the Act and provisions 

of the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors of the 
Company, without participation of Non-Independent Directors 
and Members of Management, convened a separate meeting on 
16th June, 2021, to inter-alia perform the following:

	 Review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and 
the Board as a whole;

	 Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 
information between the Company Management and the 
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perform their duties.

The criteria for evaluation are briefly provided below:

The review of performance of Non-Independent Directors was 
done, after discussing with them on various parameters, such as, 
skill, competence, experience, degree of engagement, ideas & 
planning, etc. The Board performance was reviewed on various 
parameters, such as, adequacy of the composition of the Board, 
Board culture, appropriateness of qualification & expertise of 
Board Members, process of identification and appointment 
of Independent Directors, inter-personal skills, ability to act 
proactively, managing conflicts, managing crisis situations, 
diversity in knowledge and related industry expertise, roles 
and responsibilities of Board members, appropriate utilization 
of talents and skills of Board Members, etc. The evaluation of 
Independent Directors has been done by the entire Board of 
Directors which includes performance of the Directors and 
fulfillment of the independence criteria and their independence 
from the Management as specified in the Listing Regulations.

The Board of Directors of the Company expressed their 
satisfaction towards the process of review and evaluation of 
Board, its Committees and of Individual Directors during the 
year under review and also concluded that no further action is 
required based on the current year’s observations.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS
In terms of Regulation 25(7) of Listing Regulations, your 
Company is required to conduct Familiarization Programme 
for Independent Directors (IDs) to familiarize them about your 
Company including nature of industry in which the Company 
operates, business model of the Company, roles, rights and 
responsibilities of IDs and any other relevant information. Further, 
pursuant to Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations, the Company is 
required to disseminate on its website, details of Familiarization 
Programme imparted to IDs including the details of:

i)	 number of programmes attended by IDs (during the year and 
on a cumulative basis till date),

ii)	 number of hours spent by IDs in such programmes (during 
the year and on a cumulative basis till date), and;

iii)	 other relevant details.

Familiarization Programme undertaken for Independent Directors 
is provided at the following weblink: https://www.manaksiasteels.
com/pdf/Details%20of%20familiarisation%20programme%20
imparted%20to%20Independent%20Directors%20during%20
the%20FY%202021-22.pdf
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SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act read 
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the 
details containing salient features of the Financial Statements of 
subsidiary companies/ associate companies/ joint ventures in 
Form AOC-1 forms a part of this Annual Report.

The details of performance of the Subsidiary Companies are as 
follows:

Foreign Subsidiaries & Associates:

Technomet International FZE

This Company is a subsidiary of Manaksia Steels Limited. The 
Revenue of the Company during the year ended 31st March, 
2022 stood at AED 26.06 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 527.75 Lacs). 
During the said period the company had a net gain of AED 15.37 
Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 311.34 Lacs).

Federated Steel Mills Ltd

This Company is a subsidiary of Technomet International FZE. 
The Revenue of the Company during the year ended 31st March, 
2022 stood at Naira 55911.92 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 10201.29 
Lacs). During the said period the Company had a net gain of Naira 
1581.57 Lacs (equivalent to a net profit of Rs. 288.56 Lacs).

Far East Steel Industries Ltd

This Company is a subsidiary of Technomet International FZE. 
There was no Revenue of the Company during the year ended 
31st March, 2022.

Sumo Agrochem Ltd

This Company is a subsidiary of Technomet International FZE. 
The Revenue of the Company during the year ended 31st March, 
2022 stood at Naira 9.56 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 1.75 Lacs). 
During the said period the Company had a net loss of Naira 
104.58 Lacs (equivalent to a net loss of Rs. 19.84 Lacs).

Metchem Resources Zambia Limited

This Company has became an Associate Company of the 
Company during the year under review. The Revenue of the 
Company during the year ended 31st March, 2022 was NIL. 
During the said period the Company had a net loss of ZMB 1.49 
Lacs (equivalent to a net loss of Rs. 6.32 Lacs).

Except as stated hereinabove, the Company does not have any 
other subsidiary, joint venture or associate company and further, 
the Company has not formed any new Subsidiary, Joint Ventures 
or Associate and no existing company has ceased to be the 
Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate of the Company during the 
year.

MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
In accordance with Regulation 16(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations, 
material subsidiary shall mean a subsidiary, whose income or 
net worth exceeds ten percent of the consolidated income or net 
worth respectively, of the listed entity and its subsidiaries in the 
immediately preceding accounting year. Federated Steel Mills 
Limited is a material subsidiary of the Company. The Company 
has formulated a Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries in 
accordance with the Listing Regulations, and the said Policy for 

determining Material Subsidiaries is available at the following 
weblink: 
https://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-
policies/Policy-for-determining-Material-Subsidiaries.pdf

DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits 
during the Financial Year under review in terms of the provisions 
of Chapter V of the Act.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND 
TRIBUNALS
The Company has not received any significant or material orders 
passed by any regulatory authority, court or tribunal which may 
impact its going concern status and its operations in future.

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements. The Directors have laid 
down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively. To commensurate the internal financial 
control with its size, scale and complexities of its operations, the 
Board based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee had 
appointed S K AGRAWAL AND CO CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
LLP (Previously S K Agrawal and co), (Firm Regn. No. E300272) 
as Internal Auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee reviews the Report submitted by the Internal 
Auditors. The Audit Committee actively reviews the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the internal control systems. In this regard, the 
Board confirms the following:

a)	 Systems have been laid down to ensure that all transactions 
are executed in accordance with management’s general and 
specific authorization. There are well-laid manuals for such 
general or specific authorization.

b)	 Systems and procedures exist to ensure that all transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles or any other criteria applicable to such statements, 
and to maintain accountability for aspects and timely 
preparation of reliable financial information.

c)	 Access to assets is permitted only in accordance with the 
management’s general and specific authorization. No 
assets of the Company are allowed to be used for personal 
purposes, except in accordance with the terms of employment 
or except as specifically permitted.

d)	 The existing assets of the Company are verified/ checked 
at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with 
respect to differences, if any.

e)	 Proper systems are in place for prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors and for ensuring adherence to the 
Company’s policies.
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WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM
In compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act and 
the Listing Regulations, the Company has framed a Whistle Blower 
Policy to establish a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees 
to report genuine concerns about actual or suspected unethical 
behavior, malpractice, wrongful conduct, discrimination, sexual 
harassment, fraud, violation of the Company’s policies including 
Code of Conduct without fear of reprisal/retaliation. The Whistle 
Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism has also been uploaded on 
Company’s website and the weblink thereto is:

https://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-
policies/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf

DETAILS OF THE APPLICATION MADE OR ANY 
PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR 
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AT THE END OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR
During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Company has not 
made any application or proceeding which is pending under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT 
OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE 
TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE 
WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM BANKS OR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEEROF.
There was no one time settlement made with the Banks or 
Financial Institutions during the Financial Year 2021-22 and 
accordingly no question arises for any difference between the 
amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement 
and the valuation done while taking loan from Banks or Financial 
Institutions during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED 
DISCLOSURES
The disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as 
required under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act, read 
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms a part of this 
Directors’ Report and marked as Annexure - “F”

Details of employees of the Company drew remuneration in 
excess of the limits specified under the provisions of Section 
197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 has been provided in Annexure - “F” of the Annual Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In compliance with the provisions of the Act and Listing 
Regulations, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company and its subsidiaries are attached. The Consolidated 
Financial Statement has been prepared in accordance with 
the applicable Accounting Standards issued by The Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India and sets out the financial 
resources, assets, liabilities, income, profits and other details of 
the Company and its subsidiaries.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Company continues its relentless focus on strengthening 
competition in all its businesses. It is the endeavor of your 
Company to deploy resources in a balanced manner so as to 
secure the interest of shareholders in the best possible manner in 
short, medium and long terms.

Your Directors convey their grateful appreciation for the valuable 
patronage and co-operation received and goodwill enjoyed 
by the Company from its esteemed Customers, Commercial 
Associates, Banks, Financial Institutions, Central and State 
Government, various Government and Local Authorities, other 
stakeholders and the media.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense 
of appreciation to all the employees at all levels for their 
commendable team-work, professionalism and enthusiastic 
contribution towards the working of the Company.

Your Directors look forward to the future with hope and conviction.

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Varun Agrawal Mrinal Kanti Pal
Place: Kolkata Managing Director Director
Date : 27th May, 2022 DIN: 00441271 DIN: 00867865
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Annexure – A

Corporate Governance Report 
Your Company has complied with the provisions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

A report on the implementation of Corporate Governance by 
the Company as per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given below.

Philosophy of the Company on Corporate Governance
The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to ensure 
adoption of high standard of ethics, sound business decisions, 
prudent financial management practices, professionalism in 
decision making and conducting the business and compliance 
with regulatory guidelines on Governance. The Company has 
adopted the principles of good Corporate Governance and is 
committed to adopt best relevant practices for Governance to 
achieve the highest levels of transparency and accountability in 
all its interactions with its stakeholders including shareholders, 
employees, lenders and the Government. As such the Company 
aims at always remaining progressive, competent and trustworthy, 
creating and enhancing value of stakeholders and customers to 
their complete satisfaction. The Company continues to focus its 
resources, strengths and strategies to achieve the core values of 
quality, trust, leadership and excellence.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As on 31st March, 2022, the Board comprised of seven 
directors of whom four are Independent Directors (including 
One Independent Woman Director), one is an Executive Director 
and two are Non-Executive Directors. The composition of the 
Board of Directors is in conformity with the Companies Act, 
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) and the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”).

Number of Board Meetings held and attended by Directors

During the financial year 2021-22, five meetings of the Board 
of Directors of the Company were held and gap between any 
two consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days. In case of 
business exigencies, the Board’s approval is taken through circular 
resolutions. The circular resolutions are noted at the subsequent 
Board Meeting. The dates on which the Board meetings were 
held are 20th May, 2021, 16th June, 2021, 11th August, 2021, 
11th November, 2021 and 14th February, 2022. The attendance 
record of each of the directors at the Board Meetings held during 
the year ended 31st March, 2022 and of the last Annual General 
Meeting is as under:

Name of the 
Directors

Category 
of Direct 

ors

Number 
of Board 
Meetings 

held 
during FY 
2021-22

Number 
of Board 
Meetings 
attended 
during FY 
2021-22

Whether 
attended 
AGM held 
on 21st 

September, 
2021

Number of Directorship 
in other Public Limited 
Companies* (including 

this Company)

Number of Committee 
positions held in 

other Public Limited 
Companies** (including 

this Company)

Directorship in other Listed 
Companies

Chairperson 
of the Board

Board 
Member

Chairperson 
of the 

Committee

Committee 
Member

Name of the 
Listed Entity

Category of 
Directorship

Mr. Ajay Kumar 
Chakraborty

DIN: 00133604

NEI 5 2 No 2 3 2 2 Manaksia 
Coated Metals & 
Industries Limited

NEI/
Chairman

Manaksia 
Aluminium 

Company Limited

NEI/
Chairman

Dr. Kali Kumar 
Chaudhuri

DIN: 00206157

NEI 5 5 Yes None 4 1 4 Duroply 
Industries Limited

NEI

Manaksia Limited NEI

Mrs Nidhi Baheti#

DIN: 08490552

NEI 5 3 Yes None 3 None 3 Manaksia Limited NEI

Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal

DIN: 00867865

NED 5 4 Yes None 1 None None - -

Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal 

DIN: 00520769

PD/ NED 5 5 Yes None 3 None 1 Manaksia Limited PD/MD

Mr. Varun Agrawal

DIN: 00441271

PD/MD 5 5 Yes None 3 None 2 - -

Mr. Ramesh Kumar 
Maheshwari

DIN: 00545364

NEI 5 5 Yes None 3 None 4 Manaksia Limited NEI

PD: Promoter Director; MD: Managing Director; NEI: Non-Executive Independent Director, NED: Non-Executive Director, WTD: Whole Time Director.

* This excludes Directorship held in Indian Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registered under Section 8 of the Act.

** Committee refers to Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

# Appointed as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 16th June, 2021

None of the Directors hold Directorship in more than the permissible number of companies prescribed under the Act or Directorships / Membership / Chairpersonship of 
Board Committees as permissible under Regulations 25 and 26 of the Listing Regulations.
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Shares/ Convertible instruments held by the NEDs

The number of Shares held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st 
March, 2022 is as follows:

Name of Non- Executive Directors No. of Shares Held

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 1,23,50,360

Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal 396

Disclosures of relationships between Directors inter-se:

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal and Mr. Varun Agrawal are relatives 
within the meaning of section 2(77) of the Act. None of the 
other directors of the Company, except the aforesaid, have any 
relationship inter-se.

Independent Directors

The Company has ensured that the persons, who have been 
appointed as the Independent Directors of the Company, have the 
requisite qualifications and experience which they would continue 
to contribute and would be beneficial to the Company. In terms 
of requirement of Section 149(7) of the Act read with Rules made 
thereunder and Listing Regulations, all Independent Directors 
have given declaration that they meet the criteria of independence 
as stated in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
the Listing Regulations. The requisite papers were placed before 
the Board. In the opinion of your Directors, the Independent 
Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations 
and they are independent of the management. None of the 
Independent Directors of the Company have resigned during the 
Financial year 2021-22.

Formal letter of Appointment

A formal letter of appointment of Independent Directors had been 
issued at the time of appointment/re-appointment. The terms and 
conditions of their appointment are disclosed on the website of 
the Company at the following weblink:

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/management-
team/Terms-and-Conditions-of-appointment-of-Independent-
Directors.pdf

Performance Evaluation

	 Board of Directors

As per the applicable provisions of the Act and Listing 
Regulations and based on the Guidance Note on Board 
Evaluation of SEBI dated 5th January, 2017, the Board 
carries out an annual evaluation of its own performance, as 
well as the working of its Committees. The Board works with 
the Committees to lay down the criteria for the performance 
evaluation. The contribution and impact of individual Directors 
is reviewed through a peer evaluation on parameters such as 
level of engagement and participation, flow of information, 
independence of judgement, conflicts resolution and their 
contribution in enhancing the Board’s overall effectiveness. 
Feedback-cum-assessment of individual Directors, the Board 
as a whole and its Committees is conducted. The feedback 
obtained are discussed in detail and, where required, 
independent and collective action points for improvement 
are put in place.

	 Independent Directors

Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done 
by the entire Board of Directors excluding the director being 
evaluated. On the basis of that evaluation the performance 
of the Independent Directors have been found satisfactory 
and the Board of Directors were of the view that the 
performance of the Independent Directors is beneficial for 
the Company. The parameters used by Board of Directors for 
the performance evaluation of Independent Directors inter-
alia include:

i)	 Roles and responsibilities to be fulfilled as an 
Independent Director;

ii)	 Participation in Board Processes

Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors

During the Financial Year 2021-22, as per the requirement of 
Schedule IV of the Act and Listing Regulations, one separate 
meeting of Independent Directors was held on 16th June, 2021 
without the presence of the Non-Independent Directors and the 
members of the management to discuss inter-alia the following:

a.	� Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board 
as a whole; and

b.	� To assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 
information between the Company management and the 
Board of Directors of the Company.

Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors

The Company has organised a familiarisation programme for 
its Independent Directors. The objective of the programme is to 
familiarise the Independent Directors to enable them to understand 
the operation of the Company, its business, industry and 
environment in which it functions and the regulatory environment 
applicable to it. These include orientation programme upon 
induction of new Directors as well as other initiatives to update 
the Directors on a continuing basis.

During the financial year 2021-22, on an ongoing basis as a 
part of Agenda of Board/ Committee Meetings, Independent 
Directors regularly discuss on various matters inter-alia 
covering the Company’s and the businesses & operations of its 
subsidiaries, industry and regulatory updates, strategy, finance, 
risk management framework, role, rights, responsibilities of the 
Independent Directors under various statutes and other relevant 
matters.

The details of Familiarization Programme for Independent 
Directors is provided at the following weblink:

https://www.manaksiasteels.com/pdf/Detai ls%20of%2 
famil iar isat ion%20programme%20imparted%20to%20
Independent%20Directors%20during%20the%20FY%202021-22.pdf

Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, play 
a crucial role in imparting balance to the Board processes 
by bringing independent judgement on issues of strategy, 
performance, resources, standards of Company’s conduct etc.
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Expertise and Competency of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of highly qualified members who possess required skills, expertise and competence 
that allow them to make effective contribution to the Board and its Committees.

The Directors possess required skills / expertise / competencies as identified by the Board, for efficient functioning of the Company in 
the context of the Company’s businesses and sectors are tabulated below:

Core skills/
competencies/expertise

Mr. Varun 
Agrawal

Mr. Suresh 
Kumar 

Agrawal

Dr. Kali 
Kumar 

Chaudhuri

Mr. Ajay 
Kumar 

Chakraborty

Mr. Ramesh 
Kumar 

Maheshwari

Mr. Mrinal 
Kanti Pal

Mrs. Nidhi 
Baheti

Understanding of 
Business/Industry

√ √ √ √ √ √ √

Strategy and strategic 
planning

√ √ √ √ √ √ √

Critical and innovative 
thoughts

√ √ √ √ √ √ √

Financial understanding √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Market understanding √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Board Cohesion √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Risk and compliance 
oversight

√ √ √ √ √ √ √

Board Agenda

The meetings of the Board are governed by a structured agenda. 
The Agenda for the Board Meeting covers items set out as per the 
requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations to the extent these 
are relevant and applicable. The Managing Director and the 
Chairperson of the Meeting ensures that relevant issues are on 
the Board agenda and the Board is kept informed on all matters 
of importance. All agenda items are supported by relevant 
information and documents to enable the Board to take informed 
decisions. Members of the Senior Management are occasionally 
present in the meeting as special invitees, as and when required. 
The Notice and Agenda of each Board Meeting is given in 
advance to all Directors in compliance with the requirements of 
the Secretarial Standards.

Information placed before the Board

Necessary information as required under statute and as per 
the guidelines on Corporate Governance are placed before 
the Board, from time to time. The Board periodically reviews 
compliances of various laws applicable to the Company and 
the items required to be placed before it. Draft minutes are 
circulated amongst the Directors for their comments within the 
period stipulated under the applicable law. The minutes of the 
proceedings of the meetings are entered in the Minutes Book 
and thereafter signed by the Chairperson of the meeting or by the 
Chairperson of the next meeting.

Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a “Code of Conduct” for Board 
Members and Senior Management of the Company. The Code 
anchors ethical and legal behaviour within the organisation. The 
Code is available on the Company’s website at the following 
weblink:

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-
policies/Code-of-Conduct-Board-Members.pdf

All Board members and senior management executives have 
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. A declaration 
signed by the Managing Director to this effect is forming part of 
this Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(8) of the Act, the 
Independent Directors shall abide by the provisions specified in 
Schedule IV to the Act, which lay down a code for Independent 
Directors. The said Schedule forms part of the appointment letter 
of the Independent Directors.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, as part of 
vigil mechanism to provide appropriate avenues to the Directors 
and employees to bring to the attention of the management 
any issue which is perceived to be in violation of or in conflict 
with the fundamental business principles of the Company. The 
Whistle Blower Policy provides for sufficient guard against any 
possible victimisation of Whistle Blower. No personnel have been 
denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy 
of the Company is available on the Company’s website at the 
following weblink, http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/
media/corporate-policies/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board of Directors of the Company play a crucial role in the 
governance structure of the Company and have been constituted 
to deal with specific areas/ activities which concern the Company 
and need a closer review. The Board Committees are set up 
under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly 
defined roles which are considered to be performed by members 
of the Board, as a part of good governance practice. The minutes 
of the meetings of all committees are placed before the Board 
for review. The Board Committees can request special invitees 
to join the meeting, as and when appropriate and required. The 
Company has five Board level committees:
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a)	 Audit Committee

b)	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee

c)	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

d)	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

e)	 Committee of Directors

The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and 
fixing the terms of reference for members of various committees. 
The minutes of all the Board and Committee meetings are placed 
before the Board and noted by the Directors present at the 
meetings. The role and composition of the Committees including 
the number of meeting(s) held and the related attendance during 
financial year 2021-22 are as follows:

Audit Committee

The Company has in place a qualified and independent Audit 
Committee. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee 
includes the powers as laid down in Regulation 18(2)(c) and role 
as stipulated in Regulation 18(3) of the Listing Regulations read 
with Section 177 of the Act. The Audit Committee also reviews 
the information as per the requirement of Regulation 18(3) of the 
Listing Regulations read with Section 177 of the Act.

The brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee inter-alia includes the following:

(a)	 Overview of the Company’s financial reporting process and 
the disclosure of the financial information to ensure that the 
financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

(b)	 Review with the management, quarterly and annual financial 
statements before submission to the Board.

(c)	 Review with the management, performance of the statutory 
and internal auditors and adequacy of Internal Control 
system.

(d)	 Recommending to the Board, re-appointment of Statutory 
Auditors and the fixation of their Audit Fees.

(e)	 Recommending to the Board, terms and conditions for 
appointment of Cost Auditor.

(f)	 Discussion with the internal auditor on any significant 
findings and follow up thereon.

(g)	 Review of related party transactions and transfer pricing.

(h)	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of 
the Company with related parties.

(i)	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate Loans and investments.

(j)	 Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/
investment by the holding company in the subsidiary, and

(k)	 Generally all items listed in Part-C of Schedule-II of the 
Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Act.

The Committee may in addition to above given functions, carry 
out any other functions as referred by the Board, from time to 
time, or referred by any statutory notification/ amendment or 
modification, as may be, applicable.

The Audit Committee is also provided with the following 
information on the Related Party Transactions (whenever 
applicable):

(i) 	 A statement of transactions with related parties in summary 
form in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) 	 Details of material individual transactions with related 
parties, other than with its wholly owned subsidiaries whose 
accounts are consolidated with the company and placed 
before the shareholders at the general meeting for approval, 
which are not in the ordinary course of business.

Composition

The composition of the Audit Committee is in accordance with 
the requirement of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and 
Section 177 of the Act. All members of the Audit Committee have 
the ability to read and understand financial statements.

As on 31st March, 2022, the Committee comprised of Three 
Independent Directors and One Executive Director and the 
members of the Audit Committee elect one Independent Director 
among themselves as the Chairperson of the Committee in each 
meeting. The composition as on 31st March, 2022 consists of 
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri (Independent Director), Mr. Ramesh 
Kumar Maheshwari (Independent Director), Mrs. Nidhi Baheti 
(Independent Woman Director) and Mr. Varun Agrawal (Executive 
Director). The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the 
Secretary to the Committee.

The Audit Committee meetings are also attended by Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO), representatives of Statutory Auditors, 
representatives of Internal Auditors and Senior Executives of the 
Company, if required.

Meetings and Attendance

Five Audit Committee Meetings were held during the Financial 
Year 2021-22. The dates on which the Audit Committee meetings 
were held are 20th May, 2021, 16th June, 2021, 11th August, 
2021, 11th November, 2021 and 14th February, 2022. The 
details of the attendance of members are as under:

Name of the Members No. of meetings during the 
financial year 2021-22

Held Attended
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 5 5
Mrs. Nidhi Baheti* 5 3
Mr. Varun Agrawal 5 5
Mr. Ramesh Kumar 
Maheshwari

5 5

There is no permanent Chairperson of the Audit Committee; all 
the members of the Audit Committee were present at the last 
Annual General Meeting held on 21st September, 2021.

* Inducted in the Audit Committee w.e.f. 16th June, 2021

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to the requirement of provisions of Section 178 of the 
Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, the Company 
has in place the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, inter-alia, includes the following:

a)	 To lay down criteria to identify persons who are qualified 
to become Directors and may be appointed in senior 
management and to recommend to the Board their 
appointment and /or removal.
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b)	 To evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and expertise 
required on the board of the Company and on the basis 
of such evaluation, prepare a description of the roles and 
capabilities required of an independent director in the 
Company, and to recommend an independent director on 
the basis of the same

c)	 To evaluate performance of every Director.

d)	 To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes and independence of Directors.

e)	 To recommend remuneration policy of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees.

f)	 To recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever 
form, payable to senior management as defined under the 
Listing Regulations.

g)	 To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent 
Directors and the Board and to recommend/review 
remuneration payable to Whole-time Directors/Managing 
Director/ relatives of Directors based on their performance 
and defined assessment criteria.

h)	 To devise a policy on Board diversity.

i)	 To carry out any other functions as is referred by the Board 
of Directors, from time to time, or referred by any statutory 
notification/amendment or modification, as may be 
applicable, and

j)	 Generally all items listed in Part-D of Schedule-II of the 
Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act.

Composition

As on 31st March, 2022 the Committee comprised of Two 
Independent Directors and One Non-Executive Director. The 
members of the Committee elect one Independent Director 
among themselves as the Chairperson of the Committee in each 
meeting. Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri (Independent Director), Mr. 
Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari (Independent Director), and Mr. 
Suresh Kumar Agrawal (Non-Executive Director) are members of 
the Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as 
Secretary to the Committee.

The composition of the Committee is in line with the requirement 
given in Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing 
Regulations.

Meeting and Attendance	

3 (Three) Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting 
were held during the financial year 2021-22 on 16th June, 2021, 
11th November, 2021 and 14th February, 2022. The details of 
attendance of members are as under:

Name of the Members No. of meetings during the 
financial year 2021-22

Held Attended
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 3 3
Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 3 3
Mr. Ramesh Kumar 
Maheshwari

3 3

All the members of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee attended the last Annual General Meeting held on 
21st September, 2021.

The Committee has fixed the criteria viz. knowledge and 
competency, functions, ability to perform as a team, commitment, 
contribution, integrity etc. for appointment and evaluation of 
performance of independent directors. All the directors take part 
in the evaluation process yearly and the same is placed before 
and considered by the Committee.

Remuneration of Directors

The Managing Director is paid remuneration as per the 
agreement with the Company. The agreement is approved by the 
Board and the terms are also approved by the shareholders of the 
Company. The remuneration structure of the Managing Director 
comprises of salary, perquisites and other benefits which are 
within the overall limits prescribed under the Act. The Managing 
Director is not paid sitting fee for attending Meetings of the Board 
or Committees thereof.

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for 
attending meetings of the Board and Committees thereof which 
are within the limit prescribed under the Act. The sitting fees 
paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending the meetings 
of the Board and Audit Committee is Rs. 7,500/- per meeting 
and for attending other Committee meetings was Rs. 1,000/- per 
meeting for the Financial Year 2021-22. The remuneration paid 
to the Managing Director is within the overall limits approved by 
the Shareholders of the Company.

The Directors are not entitled to any other benefits, bonuses, 
pension, etc. and are also not entitled to performance linked 
incentives. The Company does not have any Employee Stock 
Option Scheme.

There is no Executive Director in the Company apart from Mr. 
Varun Agrawal, Managing Director of the Company. The details 
of terms of appointment including notice period, etc. was 
provided in the notice sent to the shareholders relating to his 
appointment.

The Managing Director is entitled to a minimum remuneration 
even in case of no profit or inadequate profit as per the terms of 
his appointment. The details in accordance with the requirement 
of Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
are provided herein after:

I. General Information:
Nature of Industry Manufacturing
Date or expected date of 
Commercial Production

Not Applicable since the 
Company has already 

commenced its business 
activities

In case of new Companies, 
expected date of commencement 
of activities as per project approved 
by financial institutions appearing in 
the prospectus

Not Applicable
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Financial performance:
 (H in Lacs)

Particular For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

Total Revenue 51274.85 39398.38 49061.56
Total Expenses 46572.47 36023.49 48085.07
Net Profit (after tax) 2955.98 1968.50 870.18
Paid up Capital 655.34 655.34 655.34
Other Equity/ Reserves & Surplus 25090.53 21210.36 18669.36

Foreign Investments or collaborations, if any – There is no direct foreign investment or collaborations in the Company except to the 
extent shares held by Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) and NRI (Repatriation & Non-Repatriation) acquired through secondary market.

II. Information about the Appointees :
Name Mr. Varun Agrawal

Background details Mr. Varun Agrawal is a commerce graduate and having more than fifteen years of 
experience in operations and marketing of valued added steel and aluminium products.

Past Remuneration (Rs. in Lacs) Rs. 240.00 Lacs per annum

Recognition and Awards -

Job profile and his suitability Mr. Varun Agrawal, in the capacity of the Managing Director looking after the purchase, 
sale, export and other business operations of the Company. Under his leadership, the 
Company has been performing consistently.

Current remuneration (Rs. in Lacs) Rs. 240.00 Lacs per annum

Comparative remuneration profile with 
respect to industry, size of the Company, 
profile of the position and person 

The remuneration being paid by the Company is in line with the remuneration being 
paid to its Managing Director by the companies of comparable size.

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly 
with the Company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel or other director, if 
any

Mr. Varun Agrawal holds 12,761,241 equity shares in the Company. Apart from 
receiving remuneration as stated above, Mr. Varun Agrawal does not have any other 
pecuniary relationship with the company. Mr. Varun Agrawal, Managing Director and 
Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal, Non Executive Director are relatives within the meaning of 
Companies Act, 2013.

III. Other information:

	 1)	 Reasons of inadequate profits:

During the year, the profit before tax of the Company has increased by more than fifty percent as compared to the last year. 
The business of the company was adversely affected due to COVID-19 pandemic at the earlier part of the financial year 
and global volatility in the price and demand of the steel sector. The Company could improve its performance inspite of the 
volatility and adverse global situation due to timely decision making ability and implementation of well defined short term 
business plan by the management. The management is striving hard and confident of doing better in the years to come. 
Details of operations and business performance of the Company has been provided in the Director’s Report.

	 2)	 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:

The performance of the Company during the year was exceptional and the management is taking constructive measures to 
consolidate its performance and to enhance bottom lines.

	 3)	 Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:

It is difficult to forecast the expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms due to global volatility in steel 
price. The profitability depends upon various national and international factors including short term and long term measures 
taken by Government. The steps are being taken for improvement in productivity and profitability of the Company and is 
expected to improve the performance and the profitability in coming years.
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IV.	 Disclosures:

	 i)	 Details of Remuneration paid or payable to Directors for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022:

(H in Lacs)
Name of the Directors Service contract/ Notice period Salary* Sitting 

Fees**
Mr. Varun Agrawal Appointed as Managing Director liable to retire by rotation, 

for a further period of three years with effect from 11th 
February, 2022 with the approval of the Shareholders through 
Postal Ballot process.

240.00 -

Mr. Vineet Agrawal Appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company w.e.f. 
15th February, 2019 

228.00 -

Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal Appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect from 23rd 
November, 2014

NA 0.31

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal Appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect from 11th 
February, 2016

NA 0.45

Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty Re-appointed as Independent Director for a period of Five 
years with effect from 26th September, 2019

NA 0.16

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri Re-appointed as Independent Director for a period of Five 
years with effect from 26th September, 2019

NA 0.82

Mr. Ramesh Kumar 
Maheshwari

Appointed as Independent Director for a period of Five years 
with effect from 16th July, 2019

NA 0.81

Mrs Nidhi Baheti Appointed as Independent Director for a period of Five years 
with effect from 16th June, 2021

NA 0.53

ii)	 No Commission, Perquisites, Pensions, Other 
Allowances and performance linked incentive were paid 
to any Director during the year under review.

iii)	 The sitting fees include fees paid for committee meetings. 
The Company does not pay any severance fees. Apart 
from the above-mentioned remuneration, the Company 
had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 
Non-Executive Directors during the year under review.

iv)	 None of the Directors hold any stock option in the 
Company.

The Non-Executive Directors are only receiving sitting fees 
for attending the Meeting of the Board and the Committees 
of the Board. The criteria for making payment to Non-
Executive Directors is as per the Remuneration Policy of the 
Company which forms the part of the Directors’ Report. The 
Remuneration Policy of the Company can be viewed here:

h t t p s : / / w w w. m a n a k s i a s t e e l s . c o m / u p l o a d /
media/26022019/Remuneration-Policy_Manaksia%20
Steels_111-26022019.pdf

	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and 
Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has 
in place the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The terms of reference of the Committee inter-alia includes 
the following:

1.	 Redressal of shareholder and investor complaints like 
transfer of shares, allotment of shares, non-receipts 
of the refund orders, right entitlement, non-receipt of 
Annual Reports and other entitlements, non-receipt of 
declared dividends, interests, etc;

2.	 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting 
rights by shareholders;

3.	 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted 
by the listed entity in respect of various services being 
rendered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of 
the Company;

4.	 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by 
the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend 
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the 
shareholders of the company;

5.	 Reference to statutory and regulatory authorities 
regarding investor grievances;

6.	 To ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal 
of investor queries and grievances;

7.	 Oversee the performance of Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent of the Company;

8.	 To approve the request for transfer, transmission, etc. of 
shares;

9.	 To approve the dematerialization of shares and 
rematerialisation of shares, splitting and consolidation 
of Equity Shares and other securities issued by the 
Company;

10.	 Review of cases for refusal of transfer/ transmission of 
shares and/or any other securities as may be issued by 
the Company from time to time, if any;

11.	 To review from time to time, overall working of the 
Secretarial Department of the Company relating to the 
shares of our Company and functioning of the Registrar 
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and Share Transfer Agent of the Company and other 
related matters;

12.	 To consider and approve issue of duplicate / split / 
consolidated share certificates;

13.	 To issue duplicate certificates and new certificates on 
split / consolidation / renewal etc;

14.	 Such other matters as may, from time to time, be 
required by any statutory, contractual or other regulatory 
requirements to be attended by the Committee.

	 Composition

As on 31st March, 2022 the Committee comprised of One 
Independent Director, One Executive Director and One 
Non-Executive Director. Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari 
(Independent Director), Mr. Varun Agrawal (Executive-
Director) and Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal (Non-Executive 
Director) are members of the Committee. The members elect 
one of the non-executive director among themselves as the 
Chairperson of the Committee in each meeting. Mr. Ajay 
Sharma, Company Secretary of the Company acts as the 
Secretary and Compliance Officer to the Committee.

	 Meeting and Attendance

1 (One) Stakeholders Relationship Committee meeting was 
held during the financial year 2021-22 on 16th June, 2021. 
The details of attendance of members are as under:

Name of the Members No. of meetings during the 
financial year 2021-22

Held Attended
Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 1 1
Mr. Varun Agrawal 1 1
Mr. Ramesh Kumar 
Maheshwari

1 1

	 Investors’ Complaints

Details of Investors Complaints received and redressed 
during the Financial Year 2021-22:

Opening 
Balance

Received 
during the 

year

Resolved 
during the 

year

Closing 
Balance

Nil Nil Nil Nil

It is the endeavour of the Company to attend investors’ 
complaints and other correspondence within 15 days 
of receipt except where constrained by disputes or legal 
impediments. In terms of SEBI circular, the Company has 
obtained necessary SCORES (SEBI Complaints Redressal 
System) authentication. This has facilitated the investors to 
view online status of the action taken against the complaints 
made by logging on to SEBI’s website: www.sebi.gov.in.

Mr. Ajay Sharma, Company Secretary of the Company has 
been designated as Compliance Officer for speedy redressal 
of the Investor complaints. As on date of the Report, the 
Company affirms that no shareholder’s complaint is pending 
under SCORES.

	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Company has in place the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee and as on 31st March, 2022; the 
Committee comprised of One Independent Director, One 
Executive Director and One Non-Executive Director. The 
terms of reference of the committee are in compliance with 
the requirements of the Act and rules made thereunder. Mr. 
Suresh Kumar Agrawal (Non-Executive Director), Mr. Varun 
Agrawal (Managing Director) and Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 
(Independent Director) are members of the Committee. The 
Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the 
Committee.

	 Meeting and Attendance

Two meetings of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
were held during the financial year 2021-22 on 16th June, 
2021 and 14th February, 2022. The details of attendance of 
members are as under:

Name of the Members No. of meetings during the 
financial year 2021-22

Held Attended
Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 2 2
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 2 2
Mr. Varun Agrawal 2 2

	 Committee of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a 
Committee of Directors comprising of Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal (Non-Executive Director), Mr. Varun Agrawal 
(Managing Director) and Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal (Non-Executive 
Director). The Board has delegated certain powers to the 
Committee of Directors as permitted, pursuant to Section 
179(3) of the Act and/ or not restricted by the Secretarial 
Standards -1.

	 Meeting and Attendance

One meeting of Committee of Directors was held during the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2022 on 19th April, 2021. 
The details of attendance of members are as under:

Name of the Members No. of meetings during the 
financial year 2021-22

Held Attended
Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 1 1
Mr. Varun Agrawal 1 1
Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal 1 1

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2246



GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
(A)	 Annual General Meetings :

	 The location and time of last three AGMs held is as under:

No. Financial 
Year / Time

Date Venue No. of Special 
Resolution 

passed
20th AGM 2020-21

03.00 P.M.

21.09.2021 Turner Morrison Building, 6, Lyons Range, 1st Floor, Kolkata – 
700 001

The 20th AGM of the Company was held through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)

-

19th AGM 2019-20 

03.00 P.M.

29.09.2020 Turner Morrison Building, 6, Lyons Range, 1st Floor, Kolkata – 
700 001

The 19th AGM of the Company was held through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)

-

18th AGM 2018-19

12.30 P.M.

25.09.2019 Bhasha Bhawan, National Library Auditorium, Near Alipore Zoo, 
Belvedere Road, Kolkata- 700 027

6

(B) 	Extra-Ordinary General Meeting

During the financial year 2021-22 no Extra-Ordinary General 
Meeting of the Company was held.

(C) 	Special resolution through Postal Ballot

No Special Resolution was passed through the postal 
ballot during financial year 2021-22. None of the business 
proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting requires passing of Special Resolution through 
postal ballot.

	 Secretarial Audit Report

The Company has undertaken Secretarial Audit for the 
financial year 2021-22 which, inter-alia, includes audit of 
compliance with the Act and the Rules made thereunder, 
the Listing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Foreign Exchange 
Management Act, 1999 and other applicable laws, if any. 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the 
Company had appointed M/s. MKB & Associates, Practising 
Company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit of the 
Company for the financial year 2021-22.

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 
8th February, 2019 has specified that the listed entities 
shall additionally, on an annual basis, require a check 
by a Company Secretary in Practice on compliance of all 
applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued 
thereunder and accordingly your Company has appointed 
M/s. Bajaj Todi & Associates (formerly PS & Associates), 
Practicing Company Secretaries to carry out necessary 
audit for the FY 2021-22. A certificate received from M/s. 
Bajaj Todi & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries 
was placed before the Board and was filed with the Stock 
Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
The Board of Directors of the Company approves and takes on 
record the quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results in the 
format prescribed under Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations.

The Company sends such approved financial results to BSE 
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. These 
results are also been published in leading newspapers like 
Business Standard (English) and Ek Din (Bengali).

The financial results and the official news releases of the 
Company are displayed on the website of the Company at www.
manaksiasteels.com.

As mandated by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the Company 
will send Annual Report, Notices, etc. to the shareholders at 
their email address registered with their Depository Participants 
and/ or Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA). 
To continue its support to the GREEN INITIATIVES measures of 
MCA, the Company has requested shareholders to register and/ 
or update their email address with the Company’s RTA, in case of 
shares held in physical mode and with their respective Depository 
Participants, in case of shares held in dematerialized mode.

The Company has not made any presentation to the institutional 
investors/ analysts during the financial year 2021-22.

In compliance with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, 
the official website of the Company contains information about 
its business, shareholding pattern, compliance with corporate 
governance, contact information of the compliance officer, etc. 
and the same are updated regularly.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
All subsidiaries of the Company are managed by their respective 
Board of Directors in the best interest of those companies and 
their shareholders.

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, the minutes of the Board 
meetings of the subsidiary companies and statement containing 
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all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by 
subsidiary companies, as and when required, are placed before 
the Board. The financial statements of the subsidiary companies 
are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company. The 
disclosure as required under Section 129(3) of the Act in Form 
AOC-1, forms part of this Annual Report.

Policy on Material Subsidiary

The Company has formulated a policy for determining “material” 
subsidiaries and the same is available on the website of the 
Company- www.manaksiasteels.com and the weblink thereto 
is http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-
policies/Policy-for-determining-Material-Subsidiaries.pdf

DISCLOSURES
Related Party Transactions

The transactions entered into with Related Parties during the 
financial year 2021-22 were on arm’s length basis and in the 
ordinary course of business pursuant to the provisions of Section 
188 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Act and Listing Regulations, 
your Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party 
Transactions which is also available at Company’s website www.
manaksiasteels.com and the weblink thereto is http://www.
manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-policies/Policy-
on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf The Policy intends to ensure 
that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are 
in place for all transactions between the Company and Related 
Parties.

The details of the related party transactions have been disclosed 
by way of Note No. 36 of Financial Statements 2021-22.

Details of Non Compliance by the Company

During the FY 2019-20, BSE Limited had imposed a fine of 
Rs.5,000/- on the Company for delay of one day in submitting 
the financial results in ‘quick results’ format with the BSE Limited 
for the quarter ended March, 2019 due to repeated technical 
glitches faced by it, which the Company had paid.

Further during the FY 2018-19 BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited had imposed fine upon the Company for 
non compliance with Regulation 17(1) of the Listing Regulations. 
The Company had paid fine, rectified the unintentional default 
and filed application before relevant committees of the respective 
exchanges for waiver of fine. The National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited, based on the Company’s application has waived 
the fine and refunded the fine amount. The BSE Limited, based on 
the Company’s application has also waived the fine.

There were no other non-compliances by the Company and no 
instances of penalties and strictures imposed on the Company 
by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority 
during the last three years.

Material significant related party transactions which may have 
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large:

The Company does not have any material significant related party 
transactions which may have potential conflict with the interests of 
the Company at large.

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential 
allotment or through qualified institution placement

The Company has not raised any amount through preferential 
allotment or through qualified institution placement during the 
financial year under review.

Certificate from Practising Company Secretary

The Company has received a certificate from M/s Bajaj Todi & 
Associates (formerly PS and Associates) (CP No. 7270), Company 
Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of 
the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Board/
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. A 
copy of the said certificate is enclosed and forming part of this 
Annual Report.

Recommendation from the Committees to the Board

There were no such instances where the Board has not accepted 
the recommendations of/ submissions by the Committees which 
were required for the approval of the Board of Directors during 
the Financial Year under review.

Details of total fees paid to the Statutory Auditor

The Company has paid Rs. 8,00,000/- (Rupees Eight Lacs 
Only) to the Statutory Auditors as the statutory audit fees for the 
Financial year 2021-22.

The Company or any of its subsidiaries has not received any other 
services from any entity in the network firm/ network entity of 
which the Statutory Auditor is a part.

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

Details of Complaints received and redressed during the Financial 
Year 2021-22:

Opening 
Balance

Received 
during the 

year

Resolved 
during the 

year

Closing 
Balance

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compliance with Mandatory Requirements

The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory 
requirements of the Listing Regulations. The Company has 
complied with all the applicable requirements of corporate 
governance as specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations. The 
Company has complied with all the requirement of Corporate 
Governance Report as stated under sub-Para (2) to (10) of 
section (C) of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations.

Accounting Treatment

Your Company has followed all the relevant Indian Accounting 
Standards (IND AS) while preparing the Financial Statements.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is forming part 
of this Annual Report.

Disclosure regarding Appointment/Re-appointment of the 
Directors

As required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, 
particulars of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at 
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the forthcoming 21st AGM will be given in the Notice of the 
ensuing 21st AGM of the Company.

Resignation of Directors

During the financial year 2021-22, none of the Directors have 
resigned from the Directorship of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company does not speculate in foreign exchange. The 
Company’s policy is to actively manage its foreign exchange 
risk within the framework laid down by the Company’s risk 
management policy approved by the Board.

Proceeds from Public Issue

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has not made 
any public issue.

Chief Executive Officer/ Chief Financial Officer Certification

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) of the Company have given a certificate to the Board 
of Directors of the Company under Regulation 17(8) of the 
Listing Regulations for the year ended 31st March, 2022. The 
said certificate forms a part of this Annual Report. Pursuant to 
Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, the CEO and CFO of 
the Company also provide the quarterly certification on Financial 
Results while placing the same before the Board of Directors of 
the Company.

Compliance Certificate of the Auditors

Certificate from the Company’s Auditor M/s. Agrawal Tondon 
& Co., Chartered Accountants, confirming compliance with 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing 
Regulations forms part of this Annual Report.

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

The Company has instituted mechanism to avoid Insider Trading 
and abusive self-dealing. In accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“PIT Regulations”) as 
amended, the Company has established systems and procedures 
to restrict insider trading activity and has framed a Code of 

Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders. 
All the Directors, Designated Persons, Officers and other 
Connected Persons of the Company are governed by the Code 
and accordingly, the Directors, Designated Persons, Officers and 
connected persons cannot use his or her position or knowledge 
of the Company to gain personal benefit or to provide benefit to 
any third party.

The objective of this Code is to prevent misuse of any unpublished 
price sensitive information and prohibit any insider trading 
activity, in order to protect the interest of the stakeholders at 
large. The Company has adopted Prohibition of Insider Trading 
code and a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure 
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, in line with the PIT 
Regulations, as amended.

The particulars regarding dealing in Company’s shares by 
Directors, Designated Persons, Officers and Connected Persons 
are placed before the Board at its next meeting. The Code also 
prescribes sanction framework and any instance of breach of 
code is dealt in accordance with the same. A copy of the said 
Code is made available to all employees of the Company and 
compliance of the same is ensured.

The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of 
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information is available on the 
website of the Company www.manaksiasteels.com and the 
weblink thereto is http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/
media/03-04-2019/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20
Regulating-Monitoring-03042019.pdf

AFFIRMATION AND DISCLOSURE
There were no material financial or commercial transaction, 
between the Company and members of the Management that 
may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company 
at large.

All details relating to financial and commercial transactions 
where Directors may have a pecuniary interest are provided to the 
Board of Directors of the Company and the interested Directors 
neither participate in the discussion nor vote on such matters.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a)	 Annual General Meeting: 						      Date As mentioned in the notice convening the 21st Annual 
General Meeting for the Financial Year 2021-22 													             Time

													             Venue

b)	 Financial Calendar: 	1st April, 2022 – 31st March, 2023. The Financial results will be declared as per the following schedule:

Particulars Schedule
Quarter ended 30th June, 2022 On or before 14th August, 2022 (Tentative)
Quarter ended 30th September, 2022 On or before 14th November, 2022 (Tentative)
Quarter ended 31st December, 2022 On or before 14th February, 2023 (Tentative)
Annual Results of 2022-23 On or before 30th May, 2023 (Tentative)

c)	 Dates of Book Closure:

	 As mentioned in the notice convening the 21st Annual General Meeting of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22.

d)	 Dividend Payment:

	 The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2021-22.
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e)	 Remittance of Dividend through Electronic Mode:

Shareholders are required to provide their bank details, 
including IFSC (Indian Financial System Code) and MICR 
(Magnetic Ink Character Recognition), to their respective 
Depository Participants (DPs), where shares are held in the 
dematerialised form and to the RTA where the shares are 
held in the certificate form, respectively for remittance of 
dividend through electronic mode.

f)	 Address and Bank Details

Shareholders holding shares in the physical share certificate 
form are requested to promptly advise Registrar and Transfer 
Agent (herein after referred to as “the RTA”) of the Company 
regarding any change in their address/ mandate/ bank 
details etc. to facilitate better servicing.

g)	 Service of Documents

The Company sends Notices, Report and Accounts and other 
communications in electronic mode to those Shareholders 
who have registered their e-mail addresses with the Company 
or with the Depositories and in physical mode to the other 
Shareholders. Shareholders who wish to register or update 
their e-mail addresses may send their request to the RTA or 
the Company.

h)	 Permanent Account Number (PAN)

Shareholders holding shares in the physical share certificate 
form are requested to send copies of their PAN Cards to the 
RTA to facilitate better servicing. Furnishing of PAN Card, 
however, is mandatory as follows:

i) 	 Transferees’ and Transferors’ PAN Cards for transfer of 
shares,

ii) 	 Legal heirs’ / Nominees’ PAN Cards for transmission of 
shares,

iii) 	 Surviving joint holders’ PAN Cards for deletion of name 
of deceased Shareholder, and

iv) 	 Joint holders’ PAN Cards for transposition of shares.

i)	 Nomination Facility

Shareholders who hold shares in the physical share 
certificate form and wish to make any nomination/ change 
nomination made earlier in respect of their shareholding in 
the Company, should submit to the RTA the prescribed Form.

j)	 Listing on Stock Exchanges:

The shares of the Company are listed on the following Stock 
Exchanges:

	 (i)	 National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

		  Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block “G”
		  Bandra Kurla Complex,
		  Bandra East, Mumbai- 400051
		  SYMBOL: MANAKSTEEL

	 (ii) 	 BSE Limited (BSE)

		  Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
		  Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001
		  Scrip Code: 539044

The annual listing fees have been paid to both the Stock 
Exchanges for the financial year 2022-2023.

k)	 Custodial Fees to Depositories: Annual Custody/ Issuer 
fee for the financial year 2022-23 has been paid to CDSL 
and NSDL.

l)	 Unclaimed shares lying in the Demat Suspense Account:

The Company has opened a separate demat account in 
the name of “Manaksia Steels Limited-Suspense Account” 
in order to credit the unclaimed shares of the IPO of 
Manaksia Limited which could not be allotted to the rightful 
shareholders due to insufficient/ incorrect information or 
for any other reason. The voting rights in respect of said 
shares will be frozen till the time the rightful owner claims 
such shares. In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, 
the details of shares lying in the aforesaid demat account 
are as follows:

Particulars No. of 
Shares

No. of 
shareholders

Aggregate number of 
shareholders and the outstanding 
shares in the suspense account 
lying at the beginning of the year 
i.e. 1st April, 2021.

3149 36

Number of shareholders who 
approached Company for 
transfer of shares from suspense 
account during the year.

0 0

Number of shareholders to 
whom shares were transferred 
from suspense account during 
the year.

0 0

Aggregate number of 
shareholders and the outstanding 
shares in the suspense account 
lying at the end of the year i.e. 
31st March, 2022.

3149 36

Any corporate benefits in terms of the securities accruing on 
such shares viz. bonus shares, split, etc., shall also be credited 
to aforesaid suspense account. Shareholders who have 
yet not claimed their shares are requested to immediately 
approach the Company/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
of the Company along with documentary evidence, if any.

m)	 Stock Code / Symbol	 : ISIN No.: INE824Q01011

	 National Stock Exchange of India Limited: MANAKSTEEL

	 BSE Limited: 539044

n)	 Share Transfer System:

99.99% of shares of the Company are held in electronic 
mode. Intimation about transfer/ transmission of these 
shares to RTA is done through the depositories i.e. NSDL & 
CDSL with no involvement of the Company.

Effective from 1st April, 2019, transfer of shares of a 
listed company can only be affected in dematerialised 
form in terms of Listing Regulations. Shareholders holding 
shares in the physical share certificate form are therefore 
requested to dematerialise their shares in their own interest. 
Communication in this respect had been sent by the 
Company to the concerned Shareholders. However, transfer 
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deeds which were lodged with the Company on or before 
31st March, 2019, if any, but were returned due to any 
deficiency, will be processed upon re-lodgement.

The yearly Compliance Certificate pursuant to Regulation 
40(9) of the Listing Regulations for the year ended 31st 
March, 2022 received from M/s. Drolia & Co., Practicing 
Company Secretary (CP No. 1362) has been submitted to 
both the Stock Exchanges within the stipulated time.

Pursuant to provisions of Regulation 76 of the SEBI 
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 the 
Company has submitted Reconciliation of Share Capital 
Audit Report received from Meenakshi Agarwal, Practicing 
Company Secretary (CP No. 8292) / Sanjay Kumar Vyas, 
Company Secretary in Practice (CP No. 21598) on quarterly 
basis to both the Stock Exchanges within the stipulated time.

o)	 Market Price Data

The details of monthly high and low quotations of the equity shares of the Company traded at BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited during the financial year 2021-22 are given hereunder:

Month BSE Limited (BSE) National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(NSE)

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Total Number 
of Shares 
Traded

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Total Number 
of Shares 
Traded

April, 2021 28.95 21.70 2,69,454 28.90 21.65 14,43,990
May, 2021 29.65 24.05 5,78,430 29.55 24.15 18,85,324
June, 2021 30.35 23.35 17,18,528 30.45 23.00 47,77,159
July, 2021 37.60 23.45 20,35,622 37.60 23.40 69,20,248
August, 2021 39.90 29.80 41,08,380 39.70 29.75 85,81,779
September, 2021 40.25 30.50 7,09,485 40.20 30.00 30,00,151
October, 2021 33.85 28.10 3,15,229 33.80 28.10 14,04,090
November, 2021 40.00 29.05 4,67,780 40.10 28.30 20,21,578
December, 2021 37.60 29.60 5,93,061 37.95 29.55 40,52,443
January, 2022 55.00 31.45 21,12,338 54.60 31.75 1,39,79,145
February, 2022 48.00 32.00 4,19,979 48.70 32.05 22,08,248
March, 2022 51.25 38.75 5,43,088 51.00 38.80 30,19,209
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p)	 Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA):

Link Intime India Private Limited is acting as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (herein after referred to as “the RTA”) of the 
Company. The address of the RTA is given hereunder:

Link Intime India Private Limited
Vaishno Chamber, 6 Brabourne Road
Room No. 502 & 503, 5th Floor, Kolkata- 700001
Ph: +91-22-4918 6000, Fax: +91-22-4918 6060
Contact Person: Mr. Kuntal Mustafi
Email id: kolkata@linkintime.co.in

q)	 Distribution of Equity Shareholding as on March 31, 2022:

No. of Equity shares held Shareholders Shares
From – To Number % Total Holders Number % Total Capital
1 – 500 25,107 91.13 24,29,898 3.71
501 – 1000 1,158 4.20 9,52,368 1.45
1001 – 2000 607 2.20 9,29,853 1.42
2001 – 3000 225 0.82 5,89,549 0.90
3001 – 4000 110 0.40 3,83,383 0.58
4001 – 5000 75 0.27 3,55,807 0.54
5001 – 10000 129 0.47 9,67,111 1.48
10001 – And above 141 0.51 5,89,26,081 89.92
TOTAL 27,552 100.00 6,55,34,050 100.00

r)	 Categories of Equity Shareholders as on March 31, 2022
Sl. 
No.

Category No. of Shares % of 
Shareholdings

1 Promoters Group 4,89,85,319 74.75
2 Mutual Funds & UTI - -
3 Financial Institutions / Banks 501 0.00
4 Central Government / State Government(s) - -
5 Venture Capital Fund - -
6 Foreign Institutional Investors - -
7 Foreign Venture Capital Investors - -
8 Bodies Corporate 12,67,002 1.93
9 Public 1,42,90,667 21.82

10 NRI’s / OCB’s / Foreign National 2,22,823 0.34
11 Clearing Members 35,953 0.05
12 Hindu Undivided Family (HUF) 5,57,783 0.85
13 Trusts - -
14 Foreign Portfolio Investors (Corporate) 68,445 0.10
15 NBFC’s registered with RBI - -
16 Limited Liability Partnership 1,05,557 0.16

TOTAL 6,55,34,050 100

s)	 Dematerialization of Equity Shares

The equity shares of the Company are currently traded only 
in dematerialized form and the Company has entered into 
agreements with the depositories i.e. National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL). Under the Depository system, the 
International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted 
to the Company’s equity shares is INE824Q01011. As on 
31st March 2022, 6,55,33,108 equity shares representing 
about 99.99% of the share capital are held in dematerialized 
form.

t)	� Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / Other 
Convertible instruments:

The Company does not have any outstanding GDRs / ADRs 
/ Warrants / Other Convertible instruments as on 31st 
March, 2022.

u)	 Commodity Price Risk and Hedging Activities:

The Company considers exposure to commodity price 
fluctuations to be an integral part of its business and its usual 
policy is to sell its products at prevailing market prices, and 
not to enter into price hedging arrangements.
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v)	� Plants Locations (Manufacturing Units as on 31st 
March, 2022)

471, Birsinghapur, Barjora, 
Bankura – 722 202

1, Bhuniaraichak, 
Jhikurkhali, Haldia, Purva 
Mednipur, West Bengal

w)	 Address for Correspondence: 

	 Manaksia Steels Limited
	 Turner Morrison Building,
	 6, Lyons Range, 1st Floor, Kolkata – 700 001
	 Phone No: +91-33-2231 0055
	 Email: investorrelmsl@manaksiasteels.com
	 Website: www.manaksiasteels.com

x)	� Credit Rating: The Company obtained credit rating from 
CARE Ratings Limited. The credit rating w.r.t. Long Term 
Bank Facilities is CARE A-; Stable (Single A Minus; Outlook: 
Stable) and credit rating w.r.t. Short Term Bank Facilities is 
CARE A2+ (A Two Plus).

COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
The Board of Directors of the Company periodically reviewed 
the compliance of all applicable laws and steps taken by the 
Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any. The 
Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements 
of Listing Regulations. The Company has complied with the 
applicable requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and 
Regulation 46(2) of the Listing Regulations.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
In accordance with Regulation 6 of the Listing Regulations, 
the Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer of the 
Company. The details of the compliance officer are:

Mr. Ajay Sharma
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Manaksia Steels Limited,
Turner Morrison Building,
6, Lyons Range, 1st Floor,
Kolkata – 700 001,
Phone No: +91-33-2231 0055
Fax: +91-33 2230 0336

DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS UNDER REGULATION 
27 OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS
The status of compliance with discretionary requirements of 
Regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations is provided below:

	 Shareholders’ Rights: As the quarterly and half-yearly 
financial performance along with significant events are 
published in the newspapers and are also posted on the 
Company’s website, the same are not being sent to the 
shareholders.

	 Modified Opinion in Auditors Report: The Company’s 
financial statement for the financial year 2021-22 does not 
contain any modified audit opinion.

	 Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor of 
the Company directly reports to the Audit Committee on 
functional matters.

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Varun Agrawal Mrinal Kanti Pal
Place: Kolkata Managing Director Director
Date : 27th May, 2022 DIN: 00441271 DIN: 00867865
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Chief Executive Officer / Chief Financial Officer Certification

The Board of Directors
Manaksia Steels Limited

Dear Madam/ Sirs,

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Manaksia Steels Limited 
(“Company”), in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 hereby 
certify that:

(a) 	 We have reviewed the Financial Statements, including the Cash Flow Statement, of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st 
March, 2022 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i.	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading;

ii.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) 	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c) 	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated the 
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and 
the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps 
taken or proposed to be taken for rectifying these deficiencies.

(d) 	 We have indicated, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit committee:

(i) 	 significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) 	 significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements; and

(iii)	 instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Kolkata Vineet Agrawal  Rajesh Singhania
Date : 27th May, 2022 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Auditors Certificate on Corporate Governance

To

The Members of Manaksia Steels Limited

1.	 We, Agrawal Tondon & Co., the statutory auditors of 
Manaksia Steels Limited (“the Company”), have examined 
the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by 
the Company, for the year ended on 31st March, 2022, as 
stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of 
Regulation 46(2) and Para C and D of Schedule V of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 
Regulations’).

Management’s Responsibility

2.	 The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the 
responsibility of the Management of the Company including 
the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting 
records and documents. This responsibility also includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Corporate Governance Report.

3.	 The Management along with the Board of Directors are also 
responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with 
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4.	 Our examination was limited to procedures and 
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

5.	 We have examined the books of account and other relevant 
records and documents maintained by the Company for 
the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the 
compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the 
Company.

6.	 We have carried out an examination of the relevant records 
of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”), the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose 
of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports 
or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which 
requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the 
Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

7.	 We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements 
of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control 
for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical 
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related 
Services Engagements.

Opinion

8.	 Based on our examination of the relevant records and 
according to the information and explanations provided to 
us by the Management, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of 
Regulation 46 (2) and Para C and D of Schedule V of the 
Listing Regulations during the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Other Matter

9.	 We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as 
to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. – 329088E

Kaushal Kejriwal
Partner
Membership No 308606
UDIN: 22308606AKBIYO5735

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27th May, 2022
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

This is to confirm that the Company has received declarations affirming compliance of the Code of Conduct from the Board of Directors 
and Senior Management for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022.

 Varun Agrawal
Place: Kolkata Managing Director
Date: 27th May, 2022 DIN: 00441271

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI  
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of Manaksia Steels Limited
Turner Morrison Building,
6 Lyons Range, 1st Floor, Kolkata, West Bengal 700001

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Manaksia Steels 
Limited having CIN L27101WB2001PLC138341 and having registered office at Turner Morrison Building, 6 Lyons Range, 1st 
Floor, Kolkata, West Bengal 700001 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me/us by the Company for the 
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) 
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its Officers, we 
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company, as stated below, for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 
2022, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Director of the Company by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 
Company

1 Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty 00133604 09/01/2013
2 Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 00206157 17/11/2014
3 Mr. Varun Agrawal 00441271 17/11/2014
4 Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 00520769 23/11/2014
5 Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari 00545364 16/07/2019
6 Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal 00867865 27/12/2012
7 Mrs. Nidhi Baheti 08490552 16/06/2021

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

For Bajaj Todi & Associates

(Priti Todi)
Partner

Place: Kolkata 	 C.P. No.: 7270, ACS: 14611
Date: 23-04-2022 	 Udin no : A014611D000194890
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Annexure – B

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
MANAKSIA STEELS LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by MANAKSIA STEELS LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial and other records and for devising proper 
systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and Regulations.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit and considering the relaxations granted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India due to 
COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2022 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, to the extent applicable, according to the provisions of:

i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and Rules made thereunder;

iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v)	 The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities & Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) or by SEBI, to 
the extent applicable:

a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011;

b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and The Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021;

e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Debt securities) Regulations, 2008;

f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993;

g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;

h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018.

vi)	 Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws which are generally applicable to all manufacturing/trading companies, other 
laws/acts which are specifically applicable to the Company are as follows:

a)	 The Indian Boilers Act, 1923 and rules/regulations made thereunder;

b)	 Inflammable Substances Act, 1952;

c)	 The Indian Explosives Act, 1884 and the Static and Mobile Pressure Vessels (Unfired) Rules, 2016;
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d)	 Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movements) Rules, 2008.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

b)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

a)	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

b)	 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

c)	 None of the directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no instance of recording any dissenting 
member’s view in the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Period, the Company has not incurred any specific event/ action that can have a major bearing 
on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure – I which forms an integral part of this report.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secretaries

Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Raj Kumar Banthia
Date: 27.05.2022	 Partner
Place: Kolkata	 Membership no. 17190
UDIN: A017190D000410891	 COP no.18428
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Annexure- I

To
The Members,
MANAKSIA STEELS LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of 
the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events, etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secretaries

Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Raj Kumar Banthia
Date: 27.05.2022	 Partner
Place: Kolkata	 Membership no. 17190
UDIN: A017190D000410891	 COP no.18428
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Annexure - C

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3)  
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required to be disclosed 
under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

A	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
i)	 Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

The thrust for energy conservation continued during the year across all manufacturing processes through combined use of systems 
and devices. The various measures taken during the year include:

(a)	 Installation of solar power plant of 1mw capacity.

(b)	 Conducting training programmes at various factories for conservation of energy.

ii)	 Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy

The Company is constantly taking steps to identify various alternative sources of energy both for thermal and power generation 
applications. In pursuit of its goal towards savings in energy cost, the Company while procuring new machinery under phased 
modernization/ replacement program takes into account its impact on energy conservation.

iii)	 Capital investment on energy conservation equipments: Nil

B 	 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
i)	 Efforts made towards technology absorption:

(a)	 Modification of manufacturing process

(b)	 Improvement in Automation

(c)	 Development of new products

(d)	 Installing upgraded pollution control equipment for air/water

(e)	 Improvement in safety and reliability of the Plant

ii)	 Benefits derived as a result of such efforts

(a)	 Improved market share

(b)	 Improvement in productivity

(c)	 Energy conservation

(d)	 Increase in in-house capability

iii)	 No fresh technology has been imported during the year.

iv)	 The expenditure on Research & Development: - Nil

C 	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO
During the year under review foreign exchange earnings were Rs. 1783.89 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 9417.18 Lacs) and foreign 
exchange outgo was Rs. 9795.63 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 14315.18 Lacs)

															               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata											           Varun Agrawal			   Mrinal Kanti Pal
Date: 27th May, 2022										         Managing Director			  Director
														              DIN: 00441271	  		  DIN: 00867865
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Annexure – D

REMUNERATION POLICY OF MANAKSIA STEELS LIMITED

Framed under Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 19 Read with Schedule II of The Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Amended pursuant to Enactment of SEBI LODR (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 and Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017.
Amended further pursuant to Enactment of Companies Amendment Act, 2020.

CLARIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS AND UPDATES
This Policy shall be implemented as per the provisions of the Applicable Law. Any amendments in the Applicable Law, including 
any clarification/ circulars of relevant regulator, shall be read into this Policy such that the Policy shall automatically reflect the 
contemporaneous Applicable Law at the time of its implementation.

All words and expressions used herein, unless defined herein, shall have the same meaning as respectively assigned to them, in the Applicable 
Law under reference, that is to say, the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, or SEBI LODR, as amended, from time to time.

I.	 INTERPRETATION CLAUSES

For the purposes of this Policy references to the following shall be construed as:

“Applicable Law” : shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and allied rules made thereunder, Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and includes any other statute, law, standards, regulations or other governmental 
instruction as may be applicable to the Company from time to time.

“Company” : refers to Manaksia Steels Limited.

“Board” : refers to the Board of Directors of the Company.

“Committee” : refers to Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors of the Company

“Directors” : refers to the managing director and all whole-time Directors.

“Executives” : refers to the Directors, key managerial personnel and senior management personnel.

“Key Managerial Personnel” 
or KMP

: refers to the
a. 	 Managing Director, Manager, Chief Executive Officer;
b.	 Chief Financial Officer;
c.	 Company Secretary;
d.	 Officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-time employment, 

designated as key managerial personnel by the Board of Directors of the Company;
e. 	 Officers as may be prescribed under Applicable Law.

“Non Executive Directors” or 
NED

: refers to Directors other than Managing Director and whole time director and includes 
Independent Director.

“Policy” or “this Policy” : shall mean the contents herein including any amendments made by the Board of Directors 
of the Company.

“Senior Management 
Personnel” or SMP

: shall mean officers/personnel of the listed entity who are members  of  its  core  management  
team  excluding  board  of  directors  and normally this shall comprise all members of 
management one level below the chief  executive  officer/managing  director/whole  time  
director/manager (including  chief  executive  officer/manager,  in  case they  are not  part  of  
the board)  and  shall  specifically  include  company  secretary  and  chief  financial officer.

All terms not defined herein shall take their meaning from the Applicable Law.

II.	 EFFECTIVE DATE

This Policy shall become effective from the date of its adoption by the Board.

III.	 SCOPE

a)	 This Policy applies to all the “Executives” of the Company.

b)	 In addition, this Policy also extends to the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, including principles of selection of the 
independent Directors of the Company.

c)	 The Board of Directors has adopted this remuneration Policy with effect from 18.05.2019, on the recommendation of the 
Committee. This Policy shall be valid for all employment agreements entered into after the approval of the Policy for appointment 
of the Executives and for changes made to existing employment agreements thereafter.
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d)	 In order to comply with local regulations, the Company may have remuneration policies and guidelines which shall apply in 
addition to this policy.

The Board of Directors of the Company may deviate from this Policy if there are explicit reasons to do so in individual case(s). Any 
deviations on elements of this Policy under extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the interests of the Company, shall 
be reasoned and recorded in the Board’s minutes and shall be disclosed in the Annual Report of the year at which the said deviations 
takes place.

IV.	 PURPOSE

This Policy reflects the Company’s objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained and long-term value creation for 
stakeholders. This Policy will also help the Company to attain optimal Board diversity and create a basis for succession planning. In 
addition, it is intended to ensure that –

a)	 the Company is able to attract, develop and retain high-performing and motivated Executives in a competitive international 
market;

b) 	 the Executives are offered a competitive and market aligned remuneration package, with fixed salaries being a significant 
remuneration component, as permissible under the Applicable Law;

c)	 remuneration of the Executives are aligned with the Company’s business strategies, values, key priorities and goals.

V.	 GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR REMUNERATION AND OTHER TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT

The guiding principle is that the remuneration and the other terms of employment for the Executives shall be competitive in order 
to ensure that the Company may attract and retain competent Executives. In determining the Policy, the Committee ensures that a 
competitive remuneration package for all Executives is maintained and is also benchmarked with other multinational companies 
operating in national and global markets.

VI.	 RESPONSIBILITIES AND POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committee, in addition to the functions and powers as endued by its terms of reference, would also be responsible for –

a)	 preparing and recommending for the Board’s decisions on issues concerning principles for remunerations (including pension and 
severance pay) and other terms of employment of Executives and Non-Executive Directors;

b) 	 reviewing and recommending to the Board regarding share and share-price related incentive programs, if any, to be decided upon 
by the Annual General Meeting;

c)	 formulating criteria of qualifications and positive attributes to assist the Company in identifying the eligible individuals for the office 
of Executives;

d)	 monitoring and evaluating programs for variable remuneration, if any, both ongoing and those that have ended during the year, 
for Executives and Non-Executive Directors;

e)	 monitoring and evaluating the application of this Policy;

f)	 monitoring and evaluating current remuneration structures and levels in the Company.

VII.	PRINCIPLES FOR SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The nomination of the independent Directors of the Company shall be in accordance with the principles as stated hereunder and other 
relevant provisions of Applicable Law:

(a) 	 who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and experience;

(b) 	 (i) 	 who is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or member of the promoter 	
	 group of the Company;

(ii) 	 who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company;

(c) 	 who has or had no pecuniary relationship, other than remuneration as such director or having transaction not exceeding ten per 
cent. of his total income or such amount as may be prescribed, with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or 
their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year;

(d)	 none of whose relatives—

(i) 	 is holding any security of or interest in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company during the two immediately 
preceding financial years or during the current financial year:

Provided that the relative may hold security or interest in the company of face value not exceeding fifty lakh rupees or two 
per cent. of the paid-up capital of the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company or such higher sum as may be 
prescribed;
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(ii) 	 is indebted to the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company or their promoters, or directors, for an amount of 
fifty lakhs rupees or more at any time or such amount as may be prescribed during the two immediately preceding financial 
years or during the current financial year;

(iii) 	has given a guarantee or provided any security in connection with the indebtedness of any third person to the company, its 
holding, subsidiary or associate company or their promoters, or directors of such holding company, for an amount of fifty lakhs 
rupees or more, at any time or such amount as may be prescribed during the two immediately preceding financial years or 
during the current financial year; or

(iv) 	has or had any other pecuniary transaction or relationship with the company, or its subsidiary, or its holding or associate 
company or their promoters, or directors amounting to two per cent. or more of its gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh 
rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower, singly or in combination with the transactions referred 
to in sub-clause (i), (ii) or (iii) during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year;;

(e) 	 who, neither himself nor any of his relatives—

(i) 	 holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee of the company or its holding, 
subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which he is 
proposed to be appointed;

	 Provided that in case of a relative who is an employee, the restriction under this clause shall not apply for his employment 
during preceding three financial years.

(ii) 	 is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years immediately preceding the financial 
year in which he is proposed to be appointed, of—

(A) 	 a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate 
company; or

(B) 	 any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate 
company amounting to ten per cent. or more of the gross turnover of such firm;

(iii) 	holds together with his relatives two per cent. or more of the total voting power of the company; or

(iv) 	 is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non profit organisation that receives twenty-five per cent. or 
more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that 
holds two per cent. or more of the total voting power of the company;

(v) 	 is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the Company;

f)	 is not a non-independent director of another company on the board of which any non-independent director of the Company is an 
independent director;

g)	 is not of less than 21 years of age.

VIII.	OVERALL CRITERIA FOR SELECTION OF EXECUTIVES

The assessment for Senior Management will be done on the basis of below parameters by the concerned interview panel of the 
Company -

a)	 Competencies:

	 Necessary skills ( Leadership skill, communication skills, Managerial skills etc )

	 Experiences & education to successfully complete the tasks.

	 Positive background reference check.

b)	 Capabilities:

	 Suitable or fit for the task or role.

	 Potential for growth and the ability and willingness to take on more responsibility.

	 Intelligent & fast learner, Good Leader, Organiser & Administrator, Good Analytical skills Creative & Innovative.

c)	 Compatibility:

	 Can this person get along with colleagues, existing and potential clients and partners.

	 Strong Interpersonal Skills.

	 Flexible & Adaptable.

d)	 Commitment:

	 Candidate’s seriousness about working for the long term

	 Vision & Aim
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e)	 Character:

	 Ethical, honest, team player

f)	 Culture:

	 Fits with the Company’s culture. (Every business has a culture or a way that people behave and interact with each other. Culture 
is based on certain values, expectations, policies and procedures that influence the behavior of a leader and employees. 
Employees who don’t reflect a company’s culture tend to be disruptive and difficult)

	 Presentable & should be known for good social & corporate culture.

IX.	 GENERAL POLICIES FOR REMUNERATION

The various remuneration components would be combined to ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneration package.

1. 	 A fixed base salary - set at a level aimed at attracting and retaining executives with professional and personal competence, 
showing good performance towards achieving Company goals.

2. 	 Perquisites – in the form of house rent allowance/ accommodation, furnishing allowance, reimbursement of medical expenses, 
conveyance, telephone, leave travel, etc.

3. 	 Retirement benefits - contribution to Provident Fund, superannuation, gratuity, etc as per Company Rules, subject to Applicable Law.

4. 	 Motivation/ Reward - A performance appraisal to be carried out annually and promotions/ increments/ rewards are to be 
decided by Managing Director based on the appraisal and recommendation of the concerned Head of Departments, where 
applicable.

5. 	 Severance payments - in accordance with terms of employment, and applicable statutory requirements, if any.

	 Any remuneration payable to the Executives of the Company shall abide by the following norms -

i.	 The base salary shall be competitive and based on the individual Executive’s key responsibilities and performance;

ii.	 Base salaries would be based on a function-related salary system and be in line with the market developments shown by the 
benchmark research and additional market studies. The annual review date for the base salary would be April 1 or any other 
date as may be determined by the Committee from time to time, subject to the Company’s Policy;

iii.	 The Executives will be entitled to customary non-monetary benefits such as Company cars, phone and such other fixed entitled 
benefits;

iv.	 Pension contributions shall be made in accordance with applicable laws and employment agreements;

v.	 The Executives resident outside India or resident in India but having a material connection to or having been resident in a 
country other than India, may be offered pension benefits that are competitive in the country where the Executives are or have 
been resident or to which the Executives have a material connection, preferably defined-contribution plans;

vi.	 A Director may receive remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or for any other 
purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board, as permissible under Applicable law;

vii.	 If any Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limit as 
prescribed or without the prior sanction, where it is required, under the Applicable law, such remuneration shall be refunded 
to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive the recovery 
of any sum refundable to it;

viii.	 A Director who is in receipt of any commission from the Company and who is a managing or whole-time director of the 
Company shall not be disqualified from receiving any remuneration or commission from any holding or subsidiary company 
of the Company, subject to its disclosure by the Company in the Board’s report.

ix.	 Pension contributions shall be made in accordance with applicable laws and employment agreements;

x.	 The Committee has decided to adopt a share-based incentive program for the Executives;

xi.	 The Executives resident outside India or resident in India but having a material connection to or having been resident in a 
country other than India, may be offered pension benefits that are competitive in the country where the Executives are or have 
been resident or to which the Executives have a material connection, preferably defined-contribution plans;

xii.	 A Director may receive remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or for any other 
purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board, as permissible under Applicable law;

xiii.	 If any Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limit as 
prescribed or without the prior sanction, where it is required, under the Applicable law, such remuneration shall be refunded 
to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive the recovery 
of any sum refundable to it;
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xiv.	 Subject to the provisions under Applicable Law, a Director who is in receipt of any commission from the Company and who is 
a managing or whole-time director of the Company shall not be disqualified from receiving any remuneration or commission 
from any holding or subsidiary company of the Company, subject to its disclosure by the Company in the Board’s report;

xv.	 In case of inadequate or no profits in a financial year, a Director may be paid minimum remuneration in accordance to 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company may pay remuneration in excess of minimum limit specified in the 
Schedule, by passing a special resolution of its members;

xvi.	 The Company shall place the Policy on its website.

xvii.	The Company shall make necessary disclosure of remuneration of the Executives and the salient features of the Policy along 
with the web link of the Policy in its Annual Report as may be required under Applicable Law.

	 A.	 Any fee/ remuneration payable to the non-executive Directors of the Company shall abide by the following norms –

i.	 If any such Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of fee/ remuneration any such sums in excess of the limit 
as prescribed or without the prior sanction, where it is required, under the Applicable law such remuneration shall be refunded 
to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive the recovery 
of any sum refundable to it;

ii.	 Such Director(s) may receive remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or for any 
other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board, as permissible under Applicable law.

iii.	 An independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option and may receive remuneration only by way of fees and 
reimbursement of expenses for participation in meetings of the Board or committee thereof and profit related commission, as 
may be permissible under the Applicable law.

iv.	 In case of inadequate or no profits in any financial year, an Non Executive Director may be paid minimum remuneration 
exclusive of any fees payable under section 197(5) of the Companies Act, in accordance with Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Company may pay remuneration in excess of minimum limit specified in the Schedule, by passing a special 
resolution of its members.

X.	 NOTICE OF TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY POLICY

The notice of Termination and Severance pay shall be as per the terms of appointment as mentioned in the Employment Agreement or 
Letter of Appointment.

XI.DISCLOSURE AND DISSEMINATION

i.	 The Policy shall be disclosed in the Board’s report to shareholders of the Company.

ii.	 The annual report of the Company would specify the details of remuneration paid to Directors.

iii.	 The Company is required to publish its criteria of making payments to non-executive Directors in its annual report. Alternatively, 
this may also be put up on the Company’s website and reference be drawn in the annual report.

Notes:

1. 	 Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 15th May, 2015, the policy 
was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 15th May, 2015.

2.	 The Policy was amended in order to align the same with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 10th February, 2016 and 
recommended to the Board of Directors for their approval. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 10th 
February, 2016 approved the amended policy.

3. 	 The Policy was further amended in order to align the same with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [as amended by Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018], by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 30th May, 
2019 and recommended to the Board of Directors for their approval. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held 
on 30th May, 2019 approved the amended policy.

4. 	 The Policy has been further amended in order to align the same with the Companies Act, 2013 [as amended by the Companies 
(Amendment) Act, 2020], by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 16th June, 2021 and recommended 
to the Board of Directors for their approval. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 16th June, 2021 approved 
the amended Policy.
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Annexure - E

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  
(CSR) ACTIVITIES/INITIATIVES

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made thereunder]

1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy
In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has framed its CSR Policy towards enhancing welfare 
measures of the society and the same has been approved by the CSR Committee of the Board. The Company also gives preference 
to the local area and areas around which it operates for spending the amount earmarked for CSR activities. The Company has 
proposed to undertake activities as mentioned under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, inter-alia, activities relating to 
promotion of education, rural development including livestock development, protecting fauna and health care.

2.	 The composition of the CSR Committee of the Board as on 31st March, 2022 is as under:

SI. 
No.

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
Directorship

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

held during the year

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended 

during the year

1. Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal Non-Executive Director 3 3

2. Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri Independent Director 3 3

3. Mr. Varun Agrawal Managing Director 3 3

3.	 Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are 
disclosed on the website of the company:
The Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects are disclosed on the website of the company and can be 
accessed at the following links:

Composition of CSR Committee: https://www.manaksiasteels.com/pdf/Composition-of-Various-Committees_MSL-28022020.pdf

CSR Policy: https://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-policies/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf

CSR Projects approved by the Board: https://www.manaksiasteels.com/CSR Projects.pdf

4.	 The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable.

5.	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year:

SI. 
No.

Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (in Rs)

Amount required to be set-off for 
the financial year, if any (in Rs)

1 2021-22 Nil Nil

Total Nil Nil

6.	 Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013:
	 The average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the last three years is Rs. 1764.46 

Lacs.

7.	 (a)	 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : Rs. 35.29 Lacs

	 (b) 	Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil

	 (c) 	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

	 (d) 	Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 35.29 Lacs
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year. 
(Rs. in Lacs)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per Section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per second proviso to Section 135(5).

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

40.48 Nil Not Applicable Not Applicable Nil Not Applicable

(b) 	Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil

(c) 	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Sl. 
No.

Name of the 
Project

Item from the 
list of activities 
in schedule VII 
to the Act.

Local 
area (Yes/
No).

Location of the 
project

Amount 
spent for the 
project (in 
Lacs).

Mode of 
implementati 
on - Direct 
(Yes/No).

Mode of 
implementation 
- Through 
implementing 
agency.

State District

1. Not 
Applicable

Promotion of 
Education in  
society

Yes West 
Bengal

Kolkata 40.48 Yes Not Applicable

(d) 	Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) 	Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(f) 	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year: Rs. 40.48 Lacs (8b+8c+8d+8e)

(g) 	Excess amount for set off, if any: Rs. 5.19 Lacs

SI. 
No.

Particular Amount (In Lacs)

i. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 35.29

ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 40.48

iii. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 5.19

iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years, if any

Nil

v. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 5.19

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial Year.

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6)  

(in Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting 

Financial Year 
(in Rs.). 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 

per section 135(6), if any.

Amount remaining 
to be spent 

in succeeding 
financial years.  

(in Rs.) 
Name of 
the Fund

Amount 
(in Rs).

Date of 
transfer.

1. 2018-19 NA NA - - - NA

2. 2019-20 NA NA - - - NA

3. 2020-21 NA NA - - - NA

Total
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(b) 	Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):  This is not 
applicable as the Company does not have any ongoing project.

Sl. 
No.

Project ID. Name of the 
Project.

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 

commenced.

Project 
duration.

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 

project (in 
Rs.).

Amount 
spent on the 

project in 
the reporting 

Financial 
Year (in Rs).

Cumulative 
amount spent 

at the end 
of reporting 

Financial Year. 
(in Rs.) lacs

Status of 
the project - 
Completed /

Ongoing.

NA

10.	In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Nil

(a)	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable

(b)	 Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil

(c)	 Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address 
etc: Not Applicable

(d)	 Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital): Not 
Applicable

11.	Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spent two per cent of the average net profit as per section 
135(5) : Not Applicable

															               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

														              Varun Agrawal	  	 Suresh Kumar Agrawal
Place: Kolkata	  										          Managing Director	 	 Chairman of CSR Committee
Date: 27th May, 2022										         DIN: 00441271	  	 DIN: 00520769
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Annexure - F

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE  
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE  
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION  

OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

A)	 Ratio of Remuneration of each Director / KMP to the median remuneration of all the employees of the 
Company for the financial year 2021-2022

Median Remuneration of all the employees of the Company: Rs. 2,12,230

Percentage increase in Median Remuneration of all the employees: 6.52

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 176

Name of the Directors and KMP Remuneration (Rs./ Lakhs) % increase in 
remuneration in FY 

2021-22

Ratio to median 
Remuneration of all 

employeesFY 21-22 FY 20-21

Executive Director

Mr. Varun Agrawal 240.00 240.00 - 113.08:1

Non Executive Directors 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 0.45 0.43 - 0.21:1

Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal 0.31 0.22 - 0.15:1

Independent Directors

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 0.82 0.73 - 0.39:1

Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty 0.16 0.15 - 0.08:1

Mrs. Nidhi Baheti 0.53 - - N.A.

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari 0.87 0.69 - 0.38:1

Other KMPs

Mr. Vineet Agrawal  
- Chief Executive Officer

228.00 228.00 - 107.43:1

Mr. Rajesh Singhania  
- Chief Financial Officer

15.77 13.74 14.77 7.43:1

Mr. Ajay Sharma  
- Company Secretary 

5.60 5.10 9.80 2.64:1

	 Note(s):

	 *Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled only for sitting fee as per the statutory provisions and 
within the limits. The details of sitting fees of Non-Executive Directors are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance and are 
governed by the Remuneration Policy of the Company, as provided in the Annual Report. In view of this, the calculation of percentage 
increase in remuneration of Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors would not be relevant and hence not provided.

2.	 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase 
in the managerial remuneration:
There is no increase of remuneration of managerial personnel during the last financial year.

Note: For the purpose of Managerial Personnel, Managing Director is only included.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees during the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2022 is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company
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B).	 Statement as per Rule 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014:

Sl. 
No.

Particulars

i) The details of the top ten Employees based on remuneration drawn during the FY 2021-22: 

SN. Name of the 
Employee

Desig-
nation

Remuneration 
Drawn

Nature of 
Employ-

ment

Qualification 
and 

Experience

Date of 
Joining

Age Last 
Employ-

ment

Percentage 
of Shares 
held in 

Company

Related to 
Director of 
Company, 

if any

1) Mr. Varun  
Agrawal

Managing 
Director

2,40,00,000/- Permanent Commerce 
Graduate and 

17 years

17.11.2014 39 Manaksia 
Limited

19.4727% Suresh 
Kumar 

Agrawal – 
Father

2) Mr. Vineet  
Agrawal

Chief 
Executive 
Officer

2,28,00,000/- Permanent Commerce 
Graduate and 

24 years

17.11.2014 46 Manaksia 
Aluminium 
Company 
Limited

Nil None

3) Mr. Santosh  
Agrawal

President 
(Export-
Import)

81,32,350/- Permanent B.E, PGDBM 
and 40 years

01.01.2017 64 Manaksia 
Limited

0.0002% None

4) Mr. Rajesh  
Singhania

C.F.O. 15,77,000/- Permanent ACA, 
B.Com(H) and 

33 years

23.11.2014 55 Manaksia 
Limited

0.0000% None

5) Mr. Santosh 
Kumar Agrawal

GM. 
Corp. 
Admn.

15,03,994/- Permanent B.Com(H) and 
37 years

23.11.2014 59 Manaksia 
Limited

0.0002% None

6) Mr. Indrajit  
Guha

Sr. 
Manager 

(Elect)

14,45,594/- Permanent Diploma in 
Electrical 

Engineering 
and 34 years

23.11.2014 56 Manaksia 
Limited

0.0006% None

7) Dr. Khagendra 
Kumar Saha

Sr. 
Manager 
(Factory)

14,11,070/- Contractual Phd. in 
Chemistry and 

43 years

01.04.2013 71 Manaksia 
Limited

Nil None

8) Mr. Anirudha 
Guha

Vice-
President

13,71,850/- Permanent M. Com and 
40 years

01.01.2017 60 Manaksia 
Limited

0.0006% None

9) Mr. Ajit Kumar 
Gupta

Sr. 
Manager 
(Export)

12,22,537/- Permanent B.com 
(H), MBA 

(International 
Marketing) 

and 27 years

10.09.2015 53 Manaksia 
Limited

Nil None

10) Mr. Prabir 
Kumar Dey

Manager 9,22,375/- Permanent B.com and 37 
years

01.07.1984 60 -- 0.0006% None

ii) Except Mr. Varun Agrawal, Managing Director and Mr. Vineet Agrawal, Chief Executive Officer as mentioned in the above table at point B 
(i), there is no employee employed throughout the Financial Year 2021-22 who were in receipt of remuneration during FY 2021-22, in the 
aggregate, was equal to or more than Rs. 1.02 crore.

iii) Except Mr. Varun Agrawal, Managing Director and Mr. Vineet Agrawal, Chief Executive Officer as mentioned in the above table at point B (i), 
there is no employee employed for a part of the Financial Year 2021-22 who were in receipt of remuneration for such part during FY 2021-22 
at a rate which, in the aggregate, was equal to or more than Rs. 8.50 lacs per month.

iv) There are no employees employed throughout the financial year 2021-22 or for a part thereof, who were in receipt of remuneration during the 
FY 2021-22 or for part thereof which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was in excess of that drawn 
by the Managing Director and holds by himself/herself or along with his/her spouse and dependent children, equal to or more than 2 (Two) 
percent of the equity shares of the Company.

Note: For purpose of above point no. (B)(ii)(iii) & (iv), the term employees exclude Managing Director and Whole-Time Director.

															               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

														              Varun Agrawal	  		  Mrinal Kanti Pal
Place: Kolkata	  									                     Managing Director	  		        Director
Date: 27th May, 2022										         DIN: 00441271	  		  DIN: 00867865
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FORM NO. AOC- 2
Particulars of contracts/arrangements with related parties 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred 
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under fourth proviso thereto

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2022, which were not at 
arm’s length basis.

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2022, which were 
at arm’s length basis.

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Manaksia Limited, entity over which KMP’s and their relatives have 
significant influence

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions Sale of Finished Goods like BP Sheets Galvanished Coils/Sheets, 
Spares, etc.

Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/transactions During the FY 2021-22
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any

Monetary value of the aggregate transactions during the FY 2021-
22 was Rs. 58.01 Crores at prevailing market price and on general 
commercial terms of the Company.

Amount paid as advances, if any Not Applicable

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Varun Agrawal Mrinal Kanti Pal
Place: Kolkata Managing Director Director
Date : 27th May, 2022 DIN: 00441271 DIN: 00867865
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